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STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

CEVA is one of the world's leading non-asset based supply chain management compantes and offers a broad spectrum
of services based on market {eading Freight Management and Contract Logistics expertise and capabilities, alone or in
cornbination CEVA designs, implements and operates complete supply chain solutions for multinational and large and
medium sized companies on a national, regional and global level CEVA operates a non-asset based model across all
business units, with third partres providing the majornity of the physical transportation and warehousmng assets that
CEVA manages and uses for the benefit of its customers The integrated service offering spans the entire supply chain
Freight Management services that include international air, ocean and domestic freight forwarding, customs brokerage
and other value-added services, and Contract Logistics services that include inbound logistics, manufacturing support,
outbound/distribution logistics and aftermarket/raverse logistics As of 31 December 2013, CEVA’s combined global
netwark comprised over 1,000 locations, utilizing a total of approximately 9 million square meters of warehousing
space 1n over 170 countries, supperted by more than 44,000 employees

CEVA has built leading market positions by understanding its target industry sectors and applying extensive expertise to
design and implement customized logistics solutions that address industry-specific supply chain requirements CEVA
has deep expertise in a range of industries, including Automotive, Consumer & Retall, Energy, Industrial and
Technology CEVA’'s knowledge of customers’ supply chain functrans and sector expertise creates competitive
advantages for Its customers, heips to develop mare cost-effective solutions for them and puts CEVA In a strong

position to grow its business

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
The table below shaws the Group’s key consclidated financial metrics for the yvears ended 2013 and 2012

YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER
€ milligns 2013 2022
Revenve T 6,415 7,224
Revenue growth . e e -11 2% 4 8%
Adjusted EBITDA e 209 251
Adjusted EBITDA as a % of revenue " . 33% 35%
Loss before income S [172) (659)
Net capital expenditure e 60 89
Net capital expenditure as a % of revenue — e 09% 12%
Cash generated from operations 191 145

For definitions of the terms used in the ahove table please refer to page 87

The table below shows the Graup’s key other financital metnics as at 31 December 2013 and 2012

AS AT 21 DECEMBER
€ millions 2013 2012
Networkingcapital ____ ~ " T T T {99) (67)
Cashandcash equivalents 416 . 257
Net debt 1,617 2,501

For definitions of the terms used i the above table please refer to page 87

Revenue
Revenue decreased by 11 2% inctuding the effect of disposals and by 10% excluding the effect of disposals, from €7,224

muhon in 2012 to €6,415miilion in 2013 Revenue n Freight Managerent dechined by 14 9% mainly due to lower
airfreight volumes Revenue 1n Contract Logistics dechined by 5 6% excluding the effect of disposals and by 8 0% m 2013
after accountmg for disposals This was mainly as a result of lower volumes in some key markets, notably in Europe
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Addhtionally several contracts were terminated as part of the restructuring program that was launched during the last
quarter of 2012 Revenues, particularly in Freight Management, were also negatvely impacted by the loss of volume
due to uncertatnty created during the Recapitalization program which was announced and commenced on 3 Aprif 2013

and successfully closed on 2 May 2013

CEVA operates throughout the world and is impacted by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, parttcularly
the United States dollar, Chinese yuan and the British pound At constant 2012 exchange rates, our revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2013 would have been €6,659 million (2012 €7,224 millhon)

Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA 15 a key financial measure used by management to assess operational performance It excludes the

impact of spectfic tems, such as costs incurred in the realization of our cost containment programs, other non-
recurring charges and the profits or losses realized on certain non-recurning transactions Previously this measure of
perfoimance was called EBITDA before specificitems

Adjusted EBITDA decreased by 16 7% including the effect of disposals and 6 4 9 excluding the effect of disposals, to
€209 million 1n 2013 compared to €251 million in 2012 Fresght Management Adjusted EBITDA in 2013 decreased by

68 6% compared to 2012, mainly due to weak arr freight volumes Contract Logistics Adjusted EBITDA increased by

45 8% excluding the effect of disposals and by 18 8% it 2013 after accounting for disposals These improvements were
driven by higher margins in the Americas and Europe region and a penston curtailment gamn of €16 million in Europe
Additionally several low margmn or loss making contracts were terminated as part of the restructuring program that was
launched during the last quarter of 2012 Adjusted EBITDA, particularly in Freight Management, was also negatively
impacted by the loss of volume due to uncertainty created duning the Recapitalization program

Our Adjusted EBITDA 1s generally also impacted by fluctuations in foreign currencies At constant 2012 enxchange rates
Adjusied EBITDA decreased by 12 4 % from €251 million to €220 million

Impairment
No goodwill impairment charges were recognized for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012 €312 mullion) as a

result of the annual goodwll Impairment testing

Net finance expense
Net finance expense for 2013 was €175 million including a €27 millon foreign exchange loss Net finance expense for

2012 was €348 millicn including €16 milhon foreign exchange loss This sigmificant decrease 1s mainly dniven by a gain in
2013 of €97 million arsing due to the debi for equity exchange completed as part of the Recapitalization and the
reversal of accrued interest expenses of €71 million that had been watved as part of the Recapitalization In addition
interest expenses in the year ended 31 December 2013 were signficantly lower due to lower debt levels as a result of

the Recaprtalhization

Loss before income taxes
Loss before tncome taxes in 2013 was £172 million, compared to €669 mullion for 2012, with the year-on-year change

mainly driven by goodwill impairment €312 mullion in 2012 (refer to Note 12 ‘Intangible assets’) and lower net finance
expenses m 2013 as explained above

Net capital expenditure
Our net capital expenditure was €60 million 1n 2013 (2012 €89 milhion, which represented 0 9% of revenue In the year

ended 31 December 2013 and 1 2% of revenue in 2012

The low tevel of expenditure relative to revenue s due to our non-asset based operating model and disciplined
investment approach

Net working capital
Our net working capital remained negative, being €£{99) miltion as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012 €(67)

milion) This significant working capital improvement of €32 million was driven by continued management focus with
further improvement in the coliection of receivables and management of payables as well as reduced Freight

Management volumes
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Cash and cash equivalents-
As at 31 December 2013, CEVA had €416 miilion (31 December 2012 €257 mullion) of cash on its balance sheet With

undrawn central factities of €129 mullion available ai 31 December 2013 (2012 €39 nmillion), we therefore had
headroom of €545 milhan (31 December 2012 €296 million) to service operating activities for the foreseeable future

Net debt
Net debt, defined as total principal debt less cash and cash equivalents, has decreased by 35 3% to €1617 million as at

year end (31 December 2012 €2,501 million} This was largely a result of the Recapitalrzation as discussed in note 21
“Borrowings”

Segment results
The tables below show the Group’s operational performance by business segment

€ millions 2013
Freight Management Contract Logistics Total
Revenwe ___ T T T _ 2,843 3,572 6,415
AdjustedEBITDA .. e 32 177 209
Adjusted EBITDA as a % of revenue 11% 5 0% 3 3%
€ milhions 2012
Fre;ght Management Contract Logistics Total
Revenuwe T T T Bgaa T T TTEEER T T 7224
Adiusted€BITDA el o o R 5 .. O -}
Adiusted EBITDA a3 a % of revenue 3 1% 38% 3 5%

Revenue
Revenue in Freight Managemeni decreased by 14 9% to €2,843 mtllion in 2013 compared to €3,342 million 1n 2012,

while at constant exchange 1ates revenue was €2,944 i 2013 Softness in volumes, matnly arr freight, as market
conditions continued to be challenging, was the main driver of this decline in revenue

Revenue in Contract Logtstics decreased by 5 6% excluding the effect of disposals and by 8% t0 €3,572 million in 2013
compared to £3,882 million in 2012 including the effect of disposals At constant exchange rates revenue was €3,715
rmilhon 2013 This was partly a result of the sale of aur Contamner Logistics actovities at the start of 2013 and lower
volumes in some key markets, notably in Europe Additionally several [ow margin or loss making contracts were
terminated as part of the restructuring program that was launched during the last quarter of 2012

Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA 1 Freight Management decreased to €32 mullion i 2013 from €102 million in 2012 This 1s due to !

lower volumes, increases In costs and changes in the customer and freight mode mix

Adjusted EBITDA In Contract Logistics increased by 45 8% excludmng the effect of disposals and by 18 8% to €177 million
i 2013 compared to €149 miflion tn 2012 including the effect of disposals This is largely driven by higher margins in
the Americas and Europe region, a pension credit and cost savings as part of the restructuring program This was offset
by the sale of our Container Logistics business at the start of 2013 Additionally severatlow margin or loss making
contracts were terminated as part of the restructuring program that was launched during the last quaiter of 2012

Geographical tnformation
The tables below show the results of the Group from a geographical perspective

€ mithons 2013
Americas Asia Pacific Eurgpe Total
Revenue 1,989 1,757 2,669 6,415 .
Adusted EBITDA __ - . 82 30 97 209 |
Adjusted EB[TDA as 3 % of revenue 41% 17% 36% 33% |
6
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£millions

AME[ICas Asia Pacific Europe Total
Revenue T T T 40 L2936 702
Atusted EBITDA —— e B9 BB % B
Adiusted ERITDA as a % of revenue 32% 4 2% 32% 35%

Principal risks and uncertainties
CEVA 15 impacted by a number of principal risks and uncertainties, same of which are not within our control Many of

the risks affecting CEVA are macro-economic and generally affect all companies, whereas others are more particular to
CEVA This section outhnes the more significant risks, but 1s not intended to be an extensive analysis of all risks that

could affect us

Indeed, some risks may be unknown to us or more matertal than we currently estimate All of them have the potential
to tmpact CEVA and its financial performance and should be cons:dered when reading this repart The Board of
Directors of CEVA Group Plc 15 regularly informed about existing and new risks and the measures used to manage them
Specific risks related to our business are included below

Adverse economic conditions
The supply chatn management industry 1s susceptible to trends in economic activity, including but not mited to

industrial production, consumer spending and retail activity, and an economic crisss or slowdown may negatively affect
our business i a number of ways In particular, our results of operattons and financtal conditron are directly tied to the
purchase and production of goods across the global econemy The primary activity of our Freight Management
business 1s to transport goods, and our Contract | ogistics business is an integral part of the production, storage and
distribution of goods in many different industries Changes in economic condittons could materrally adversely impact
our customers, which could In turn impact their demand for our services and the terms on whtch we provide them

Availability of third-party providers
We do not in general mantain our own transportation networks Instead, we rely on third-party transportation service

providers for most of our contract logistics transport services and substantially all of our Freight Management services
Our ability to serve some of cur customers depends on the availability of space on passenger and carge ariines and
ocean carriers that service the transportation lanes they use We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain
access to preferred third-party networks at attractive rates or that these networks will have adequate available
capacity to meet our needs In addition, although we seek to pass through third-party transportation rate increases to
our customers, In certain Instances, we may not be able to raise prices in sufficient amounts or on a sufficiently rapid
basis, which could materially adversely affect our profitability and results of operations

Cost base
In response to the recent ecanomic turmotl, we executed a number of initiatives to reduce our costs In November

2012 the Company announced a three-pronged cost reduction plan that is focused on SG&A costs, Fraight
Management direct costs and fixing underperforming contracts, which will help to improve our prefitability in the
event of another slowdown, we may need to implement further cost reduction inittiatives Despite the [arge vartable
cost component of our business model, such initiatives may not achieve the necessary cost savings to offset the
potential decline of our revenues In addition, we cansistently target incremental cost savings as part of our
operational improvements, however we may not achiave these targeted cost savings in the amounts o in the time

frames expected or at all

Long-term contracts
We enter into long-term contracts with many of our customers Although we seek to retain flexbility in our contractual

arrangements with our customers to adjust pricing terms or termimate contracts which become economically enerous,
we sometimes bear a portien of cost increases if we are unable to adjust these terms rapidly or sufficiently

We also enter into contracts with third parties who provide services or property to us in connectian with our provision
of services under our customer contracts These supplier contracts may prowide for fixed pricing and other terms which
we negotiate based on our assumptions regarding our customers’ scope of services and volumes, the operational
efficiencies and productivity improvements we expect to achieve and other estimates Although we seek to structure
our arrangements with third parties on a back-te-back basis wath the related customer arrangements—for example, by
entering into lease agreements with durations and termination rights that are coterminous with the duration of the
customer contracts that the leased property 15 used to service—or otherwise seek to require our customers to assume
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these costs and commitments If they prematurely terminate their contracts with us, there may be instances where we
are not able to offset or transfer such costs to our customers Furthermore, our assumptions and estimates regarding
our customers’ activitigs may prove to be inaccurate as a result of changes to ecanomic conditions, reductions in
volumes or other developments, and as a result, our operating margins may be materially adversely affected under
contracts where we bear these nsks

Changes in trend toward cutsourcing

Our growth strategy 15 partially based on the assumption that the trend toward outsourcing of supply chan
management services will continue Third-party service providers such as ourselves are generally able to provide such
services more efficiently than otherwise could be provided “in-house,” primarily as a result of our experbise, technelogy
and iowel and more flexible employee cost structure However, If this trend changes such that potential new
customers decide to continue to perform their own supply chain activities, orif our customers in-source significant
aspects of their supply chamn operations, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be maternially

adversely affected

Changes i preferred modes of freight

There 15 a variety of modes in which freight can be t1ansported, ncluding by air, ocean, road er ratfroad We have
differing market positions and exposure to various modes of freight, which have differing margin levels and net
working capital requirements While not all of these modes are interchangeable, depending on the origin and
destination of freight our customers have substantial flexibility to choose the mode that best suits their needs in terms
of type of freight, cost, speed, certainty of arrival time and other factors Trends in preferred modes may shift over
time as their charactenstics change or our customers' priorities change For example, during periods of economic
contraction and inventory de-stocking, certain customers may find that speed and certainty of arnval trmes less
nmportant than when inventory levels are tight If this is the case, such custormers may choose ocean freight as a lower-
cost but slower alternative to air freight We have experienced a shift in our air freight volumes to ocean freight
volumes, particularly in Asia, which contributed to a softening of aur overail arr freight volumes and negatively
tmpacted our margins and net working capital requirements This trend started 1n 2012 and continued 1n 2013 While
these trends may to some exient be cyclical in nature, there can be no assurance that the trend from air freight to
ocean freight does not continue, and we may not be able to prepare for or predrict future shiftsin demand for
particular transportation services, which may have a matenally adverse effect on our business

Competition and consolidation in the industry

The contract logistics and freight forwarding mdustries in which we operate are highly competitive, and we expect
them to remain so in the foreseeable future If we do not have sufficient market presence or are unable to differentiate
ourselves from our competitors, we may not be able 1o compete successfully against other companies If our
competitors are able to obtain more favorable terms from suppliers, offer more comprehensive services to customers,
or otherwise take actions that could increase their competitive strengths, including potentially through consolidation,
our competitive position and therefore our business, results of operations and financial condition may be matenally

adversely affected

Debt and covenants
Our indebtedness contains a number of covenants thal impose signmficant operating and financial restrictions on us,

tncluding certain restrichions on our ability to incur additional debt, pay dividends, make investments and sell assets

Our senior secured credit facilities reguire us £o maintain a net secured first lien ratio of no mare than4 0to 10 Our
ability to maintain this ratio and to generate sufficient cash flow from operations to make scheduled payments on our
debt depends on a range of economic, competitive and husiness factors, many of which are outside our control |

In additton, curindebtedness may require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flows from operations to the
servicing of such indebtedness and may materially adversely affect the terms under which suppliers provide goods and
services to us Our flexibihity tn planning for and reacting to changes in our business or developments in market

conditions may be imited, and we may be more vulnerable to downturns in our bus:ness or the economy, as a result of

our substantial indebtedness

If we are unable to meet our expenses and debt service obligations, we may be forced to take measures which could
raterially adversely affect our business and financial condition, for example, we may be forced to reduce or delay
business activities and capital expenditures, sell assets, obtain additional funding, restructure or refinance all or a
portion of our debt {which may be at higher interest rates or impose covenants or other restrictions on us) or take
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other measures ~If we are unable to meet our debt service abligatians, or if we faif to comply with our debt covenants
and a resulting event of defauit 1s not cured or waved, our lenders may be able to declare all outstanding borrowings
to be due and payable or take other remedial actions If our indebtedness were to be accelerated, we cannot assure
you that our assets would be sufficient to repay such indebtedness in full and our lenders could foreclose on our

pledged assets

Information technology and operational systems
In arder to manage our growth and improve our performance, we must maintain and continuously improve our

operational systems and processes In addition, we expect our customers will continue to demand more sophisticated
and fully integrated information technology systems compatible with their own information technology environment
Our information systems must frequently mteract with those of our customers and service providers and must function
across multiple ternitoties Qur future success will depend on our ability to employ software that meets industry
standards and customer demands across multiple ternitories, and to continue to upgrade and develop our software to
ensure It remains state of the art The failure of the hardware or software that supports our tnformatton technology
systems or the loss of data in the systems, or the inabiity to access or interact with our customers electrontcally
through our websites, could significantly disrupt customer workflows and cause eccnoemic iosses for which we could be
held hable and that would damage our reputation If we fail to meet the demands of our customers to maintain and
improve our information technology and operational systems or if we fail to protect agarnst disruplions of outr own and
our customers’ operations, we may lose custamers, which could materially adversely affect our business, results of

operations and financal condition

Credit nisk
We are exposed to credst 1isk which 1s influenced mainly by the indwidual characteristics of each customer The

demographics of the Group’s custemer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in whicih customners

operate, has less of an influence on credit risk  CEVA's eredit policy determines that each new customer s analyzed

ndmdually for creditworthiness before terms and conditions are offered to the customer The Group’s review includes |
external ratings where available and in some cases bank references Purchase himits are established for each customer

and thase lirmits are reviewed periodically The Group establishes an allowance for impairment in respect of trade and

other recewvables Refer to note 16 “Trade and other recevables” for details of trade recevables and prowision for

impairment For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of ‘A~ from

Standard & Poor’s or equivalent rating from Magpdy's are accepted Group Treasury trades with its defined relationship

banking group unless trading outside this banking group is required either for operational needs er provides

significantly better terms and conditions

Worldwide laws and regulations
The supply chain management services we provide are regulated by various governmental authorities and are subject

to legal requirements of various countries and junsdictions around the world, mcluding legal obligations and
prohibitions imposed by statute, regulation, common law, contract and other legal sources Afailure to comply with
applicable laws and regulations and maintamn appropnate authorizations could result in substantial fines, operational
restrictions or possible revacations of authanity to cenduct operations, which couid have a material adverse impact on
our business, results of operations and financial condition Future regulations or changes in existing regulations, orin
the mterpretation or enforcement of regulations, could require us or our customers to 1ncur additional capital or
operating expenses or modify business operations to achieve or maintain compliance In addition, dug to the cross-
border nature of our activities and the farge number of countries in which we operate, we must continually monitor
our compliance with anti-corruption, trade control, and sanctiens laws and regulations, including the U § Foreign
Corrupt Praciices Act, the U K Bribery Act and antitrust and competition laws Recent years have seen a substantial
increase In global enforcement of these laws, with mare frequent voluntary self disclosures by companies, industry-
wide investigations and criminal and cvil enforcement proceedings by U $ and other government agencies resulting tn
substantial fines and penalties We may be subject to crimrnal and civil penalties and other remedial measures asa
result of any violation of applicable anti-corruption, trade control, and sanctions laws and regulations, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition While we have in place
policies and procedures relating to compliance with these laws, there can be no assurance that our internal policies or
procedures will work effectively to ensure that we comply with such anti-corruption, trade control, and sanctions laws
and regulations all of the time or to protect us against hability under such laws and regulations for actions taken by our
employees and third-party service providers with respect to our business .

CEVA has global and regional legal personnel to manage legal risks by keeping abreast of applicable laws and
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regulations and by implementing, monitoring and enforemg the Company's policres, practices and procedures
{inciuding 1ts commercial practice policies, code of business conduct and other policies and procedures) consistent with
applicable legal requirements} These efforts Include development and implementation of the Company’s compliance
program, tratning in support of that program and aggressive management of legal and regulatory 1ssues and risks as
they arise in itigatron and other disputes These efforts are designed to identify, assess, monitor and mimimize legal
risks to the Company and thereby support complhance with applicable legal requirements

Owner-operator mode|
Our Freight Management operations in the United States rely primartly on drivers who are independent contractor

owner-operatwors The owner-operator model s periodically challenged hy federal and state governmental and
regulatory authorities, including tay authorities, as well as by individual drivers as private plaintiffs, seeking to have
drivers reclassified as employees rather than independent contractors We are currently subject to claims by muttiple
driversin Califormia, as well as a regulatory action arising out of an audit by California’s Empltoyment Development
Department, each in connection with the classification of mdependent contractor owner-operators See note 27

“Contingencies” for further details

If our independent contractor drivers were to be deemed to be employees, whether due to regulatory or judicial
determinattons or changes in applicable federal and state laws and regulations, i1t could, among other things, entitle
drivers to reimbursement by us of certain expenses and to the benefit of wage-and-hour laws, subject us to
employment and withholding tax and benefit lizbilities, sigrificantly increase our unemployment compensation and
workers’ compeansation payments, and have other substantial negative financial, tax and operational impacts on our
business, and would require significant changes to how our Freight Management operations are conducted As a result,
our operating costs could mncrease significantly and our business, results of operations and financial cenditien could be

materially adversely affected

Currency fluctuation
As a result of our global operations, our busmess, results of operations and finanaial condition may be matenally

adversely affected by fluctuations in currency exchange rates For example, we are subject to currency risks because
our revenues may be generated in different currencigs from the currencies in which our related costs are incurred, and
because our cash flow may be generated in currencies that do not match our debt service obligations in addition, our
reporting currency 1s the USS, and therefore our reporting results are subject to transtational risks relating to currency
exchange rate fluctuations Given the volatility of exchange rates, our fatlure to effectively hedge or otherwise manage
such currency nisks effectively may materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

Joint ventures
We have entered into joint venture arrangements in multiple jurisdictions Under these arrangements, our joint

venture partners have certain rights to exercise control or influence over aperations and decision-making Therefore,
our ability to manage and develop these operations may be limited, and we may be unable to prevent actions that we
believe are not in our best interests or the best interests of the relevant joint venture The continued vizhility of these
joint ventures depends on our relationship with, and the cooperation of, our joint venture partners
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SUMMARY OF CORPORATE AND FINANCING STRUCTURE AT 31 DECEMIBER 2013

Equity holders
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*Diagram excludes other finzncing of €163 million comprising finance leases, bank overdrafts and other loans

1 As at 31 December 2013, € nit was drawn under the revolving credit facility (2012 €104 mulhen} and €191 mullion
(2012 €171 million) of letters of credit were 1ssued but undrawn under the synthetic L/C facility and revolving credit
facility The committed senior secured facilities are secured by substantially all of the assets of CEVA Group Plc and
certain of its subsidiaries The senior secured {acilities consist of factities denomimated in both USS and Euros The
amount of the USS denominated facilities have been converted to € for the above presentation based on an exchange
rate of 13789

2 CEVA Limited and certain of the Company’s operating subsidianies located in Australia, Belgium, Brazii, Canada,
Germany, Hong Kong, Luxembourg, The Netherlands, the Cayman Islands, United Kingdom and the United States have
guaranteed the notes CEVA Group Plc and the guarantors of the notes also guarantee our sentor secured facilities on a
sentor secured basis The guarantors represent 56% (2012 60%) of our aggregated revenue before intercompany
eliminations, 57% (2012 64%) of our aggregated Adjusted EBITDA and 52% (2012 64%) of our aggregated EBITDA for
the year ended 31 December 2013 Not all of the guarantors are borrowers under each of the senior secured term
facility, the revelving credit facility and the synthetic L/C faciiity

3 Qur non-guarantor substdianes accounted for 44% (2012 40%} of our total aggregated revenue before
intercompany eliminations and 48% (2012 36%) of our aggregated EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2013

4 The obligor under the US ABL facility 15 CEVA US Receivables LLC, which is a bankruptcy remote entity formed in
connection with the establishment of the US ABL facility CEVA US Receivables LLC does not guarantee the Group’s
other indebtedness and is an unrestricted subsidiary under the Group's other debt faciities

5 The obligor under the Australian Receivables Facility 1s CEVA Receivables {Australia) Pty Ltd, which s a bankruptey
remote entity formed in connection with the establishment of the Australian Recevables Facility CEVA Recewables
{Australia) Pty Ltd does not guarantee the Group’s other indebtedness and 1s an unrestricled substdiary under the
Group's other debt facilities

6 On 19 March 2014 CEVA Group Plc announced that it successfully completed its previously announced debt
refinancing Through this transaction, CEVA lowers the average interest rate it pays, further increases caprtal availakle
to fund growth mitiatives, and establishes a long-term caprtal structure with a werghted average matunty of 2020
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CEVA also announced the early settlement of 1ts previously announced cash tender offers and consent solicitations for
1ts 8 375% Senlor Secured Notes due 2017, 11 625% Senior Secured Notes due 2016, 11 5% Junior Priority Senor

Secured Notes due 2018 and 12% Senior Notes due 2014

In connection with financing the tender offers and consent sclicitations, CEVA, among other things, {i) amended and
restated 1ts secured credit facilities, which included extending maturities and increasing the size of the facilities to an
$809 million term loan faciity (maturing i 2021}, a $250 mulhion revolving credit facility {maturing in 2019) and a $275
million letter of credit facility (maturing m 2021), {n} privately 1ssued $300 million of 7 0% First Lien Sentor Secured
Notes due 2021 and (in} privately 1ssued 5325 miilion of 9 0% Senior Secured Notes due 2021

SUMMAR OF FACILITIES AND NOTES

On 3 April 2013 CEVA Group Plc (referred to as “CEVA"/"the Company”/"The Group”) announced a financial
recaprtalization plan that would reduce substantially CEVA's overall debt and interest costs, as well as increase liquidity
and strengthen iis capital structure ({the “Recapitalization”} On 2 May 2013 the Recapitalization successfully closed
The Recapitalizaiton enables CEVA to beiter serve its customers, accelerate its growth throughout the world and fund
the developrnent of new supply chain products and services The Recapitalization reduced consolidated net debt by
approximately €1 2 hillion and reduces annual cash interest expense by approximately €130 muliion or apgroximately
50% It also further strengthens CEVA’s higuidity with approximately €165 milion of proceeds from equity capital from
our new shareholders and the 1ssuance of approximately €65 million of additional 4% Senior Secured Notes

Foliowing the Recapitalization, CEVA Graup Plc became a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEVA Holdings LLC In the
Recapitalization, Apollo acquired a minonity stake i the equity of the CEVA Holdings LLC thraugh exchanging CEVA
debt 1t held and through the cash purchase of equity However, Apollo retained contro] of the CEVA Holdings LLC
through contractual arrangements under the Company’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement,
dated as of 2 May 2013, (as the same may be amended from time to time, the “LLC Agreement”)

The Recapitalization resulted 1n the following

s £518 million principal amount of 11 5% Junior Priority Senior Secured Notes exchanged for equity in Holdings, which
then released the notes and received a like amount of new 10% Second Lien Secured PIK Notes

» €434 million principal amount of 12 75% Senior Notes exchanged for equity in Holdings, which then released the
notes

= €6 million principal amount of 12% Senior Notes exchanged for equity in Holdings, which then released the notes

o €85 milhon principal amount of Senior Unsecured Loans exchanged for equity in Holdings, which then released the
leans

¢ £69 million principal amount of Term Loans and €160 million principal amount of 8 375% Senror Secured Notes wele
released by one of CEVA’s largest institutional investors in return for €229 million principal amount of new 4% Sentor
Secured Notes

Senior Secured Facihities due 2015/2016
The Group entered into senior secured facilities with certain banks to finance the acquisition of our Contract Logistics

busmess on 4 November 2006 and our Freight Management business on 2 August 2007 The facilitres were
subsequently amended and restated and have been subject to various prepayments and incremental tranche add-ons
Following the above mentioned recapitalization, of the €0 7 illion total faciities as at 31 December 2013, €389 million
was outstanding as term loans, €74 milhion of letters of credit were issued but undrawn under the €179 million
revolving credit facility and £117 million of letters of credit were issued but undrawn under the €123 milion synthetic

L/C facility

8 375% Senior Secured Notes due 2017
On 14 December 2010, the Group ssued US5450 million 8 375% first lien senior secured notes due 1 Decermber 2017

Interest Is payable on 1 March and 1 September each year On 1 February 2012, the Group 1ssued US5325 millron of
addiional 8 375% first lien senior secured notes Following above mentioned recapitahization US$562 million was

outstanding as at 31 December 2013
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4% Senior Secured Notes due {viay 2018
As part of the Recapitalization on 2 May 2013 the Group 1ssued U55305 mitiion of 4% senior secured notes due 2018
The Group 1ssued another US$85 million 4% senior secured notes on 18 July 2013 As at 31 December 2013 Uss33a0

mullion was outstanding

11 625% Senio Secured Notes due 2016
On 6 October 2009, the Group 1ssued US$210 million 11 625% lien-and-a-half senior secured notes due 2016 As at 31

December 2013 USS210 million was outstanding

10% Second Lien Secured PIK Notes due May 2023

As part of the Recapitalization on May 2 CEVA Group Plcissued US5689 million of 10% second lien secured PIK notes
due 2023 The Group issued another US517 million on 1 August 2013 and another Us518 million on November 1, 2013
in respect of PIK interest payments due with respect to the notes As at 31 December 2013 US5724 ruilion was

outstanding

11 5% Jumior Priority Senitor Secured Notes due 2018
On 24 March 2010, the Group 1ssued US$702 million of 11 5% junior priority semor secured notes due 2018 Interestis
payable on 1 Aprtl and 1 October each year Following the Recapitaiization, as at 31 December 2013 Us$12 million was

outstanding

12% Sentor Notes due 2014
As at 31 December 2013 €5 million was outstanding (2012 €11 mullion)

12 75% Senior Notes due 2020
On 1 February 2012, CEVA Group Plc, 1ssued US$620 million of 12 75% semor unsecured notes due 2020 Interest s
payable on March 31 and September 30 Following the Recapitalization, as at 31 December 2013 Us543 milion was

outstanding

Sentor Unsecured Loan due 2018
On 2 August 2007, CEVA Group Plc entered into a USS$1 4 bilhon semor unsecured loan facility This senior unsecured

loan had a floating interest rate which was capped at 9 75% The facilities were subsequently amended and restated
and were partially repard as part of the aforementioned debt and equity funded financing, on 1 February 2012
Following the Recapitalization, as at 31 December 2013, USSO million was outstanding

US ABL Facihity due 2018

On 19 Navember 2010, certain US subsidiaries of the Group (“the Onginators”) and a new subsidiary, CEVA US
Recewvables, LLC (the “Unrestricted Subsidiary”), entered into agreements establishing an Asset Backed Loan (ABL)
Facility with an inittal commitment amount of US$200 million (the “ABL Facihity”) On 30 November 2010, the
committed amount of the ABL Facility was increased to US5250 million The ebligations of the Unrestricted Subsidiary
under the ABL Facllity are secured on a first-priorty basts by all currently owned and subsequently acquired assets of
the Unrestricted Subsidiary, including, but not limited to, ail of the accounts receivable transferred to the Unrestricted
Subsidiary by the Originators The ABL Facility was scheduled to mature on 19 November 2015, but was amended on 31
December 2012 and now matures on 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding drawn amount of

the ABL Facility was US$153 million

Austrahan Receivables Facihity due 2015
in October 2012, certain Austrahan subsidiaries of the CEVA Group Plc entered into a Receivables Purchase Agreement

with a faciiity himit of A$40 million maturing in September 2015 At 31 December 2013, the total amount of borrowings
outstanding was A339 milhon {2012 AS40 mullion)

March 2014 refinancing
As part of the debt refinancing, CEVA (1) amended and extended its sentor secured credit facilities, and obtaned an

$809 million term loan facility {maturing 1in 2021}, a $250 mulhon revolving credht facthty {maturing in 2019) and a 8275
million letter of credit facility {maturmg n 2021), {n) privately issued $300 milhon of 7 0% First Lien Senior Secured
Notes due 2021 and (i} pnivately 1ssued $325 mullion of 9 0% Senior Secured Notes due 2021

CEVA used the proceeds from the new notes and the term loan to {1} fund the early settlement of cash tender offers
and consent solicitations for its & 375% Senior Secured Notes due 2017 (the “8 375% Notes”), 11 625% Senior Secured
Notes due 2016 {the “11625% Notes”) and 11 5% Jumor Priorty Senior Secured Notes due 2018 (the “Unsecured
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Notes” and, together with the 8 375% Notes and the 11 625% Notes, the “Notés”), Tn which $508,445,000"of 8 375%
Notes (or approximately 90 4%), $208,050,000 of 11 525% Notes (or approximately 9% 1%}, and $12,190,001 of
Unsecured Notes (or 100%), were tendered for respective total constderation of $1,067 50, 51,064 50 and 51,053 75, In
each case, per 51,000 principal amouat of notes tendered plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest up to, but not
including, 19 March 2014, (n) fund the redemption and discharge of ail of the remaining untendered 8 375% Notes at
106 281% of principal amount and all of the remaining untendered 11 625% Notes at 105 813% of prineipal amount,

plus, In each case, accrued and unpaid interest 1o the applicable redemption date,(n) fund the redemption and

discharge of all of its outstanding 12% Second-Prionty Sentor Secured Notes due 2014 al a redemption price of 100% of

principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date, and {Iv) repaid term loans under its
existing senior secured credit facilities, plus accrued and urpaid interest to the repayment date
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DIRECYORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report and the audited financal statements of CEVA Graup Ple for the year ended 31
December 2013

CEVA Group Plec was incorporated in England and Wales on 9 August 2006 At the date of this document, the authorized
share capital of £699,965 Is divided into 3,500,000,000 ordinary shares of a par value of £0 0001 each and 350,000
deferred shares of a par value of £0 8939 each On 2 May 2013 CEVA completed a major financial Recapitalization
CEVA Holdings LLC became the new ultimate parent company of CEVA Group Plc Asat 31 December 2013 CEVA
Holdings LLC holds 3,499,650,000 ordinary shares of a par value of £0 0001 each (99%), CIL Limited (formerly known as
CEVA Investments Limited} holds 349,999 ordinary shares of a par value of £0,0001 each and 349,999 deferred shares
of a par value of £0 9999 each and Louis Cayman Second Holdco Limited holds 1 ordinary share of a par value of
£0,0001 and 1 deferred share of & par value of £0 9999 (CIL Limited and Louis Cayman Second Holdco Limited together

holding 0 01%)

The rights of the equity holders of CEVA Group Pic are contained in the Articles of Association of CEVA Group Ple
CEVA Group Plcis managed by its directors in accordance with those articles and in accordance with the laws of

England and Wales

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group reported a loss for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2013 of €163 million (2012 a loss of €681 million)

Dividends €2 million were paid to non-controlling interests during the year No dividends were paid or recommended
after 31 December 2013 up until the signing of this annual report

POLITICAL DONATIONS
CEVA did not make any donations to a registered palitical party, or other political organrzation within or outside the EU

or any independent election candidate (2012 nil)

OTHER DISCLOSURES
The Group did not cariy out any research and development activities during the year

GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION
In accordance with UK company law and best praclice, the directars are required to consider whether 1t 1s appropriate

to prepare the financial statements under the going concern principle CEVA prepares annual budgets, five year
forecasts and regularly supplements the budgets with quarterly forecasts during the year After reviewing

this information m conjunction with our available faciities and our commitments 1o debt repayments, and considering
the financial recapitalization, the Directors have concluded that the Group has adeguate resources for the foreseeable
future Therefore the Group and the Company have continued to adopt the going concern basis in the preparatton of

the financoal statements

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
Please refer to note 29 “Events after balance sheet date” for further details

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors of CEVA Group Plc consists of two executive and seven non-executive directors and one

alternate director The directors and their remuneration are disclosed in note 7 "Personnel expenses” There have been
no changes In directors’ interests since the end of the period under review and the date of this report

At the date of this report, the following persons are members of the CEVA Group Plc Board of Directors
Marvin Schlanger {Chawrman and mterim President Americas)
Michasl Jupitei

Alan Miller
Stan Paiker

CEVA Group Plc - Annual Report 2013 15




Craanuel Paaiiman

John Smuh

Thomas Stallliamp

Tom White {interim COO})

Hawvier Uibam (CED)

PDawn Wetherall (Regional General Counsel — Europe and Alter nave i ecuon }

CEVA has agreed to indemnify Marvin Schlanger, Stan Parker, Tom While and Michael Jupiter for losses relating to the
services contemplated by the management agreement with Apotlo

BOARD COMPENSATION
Apolio and its affillates have the power to control us and our affairs and pahicies, ncluding the election of the majenity

of our directors Four of the members of our Board of Directors are partners or employees of Apollo or Apollo portfohio
companies We have four independent, non-employee diectors Independent non-employee directors receive |
U$525,000 for each calendar quarter of service All other non-employee directors are paid US515,000 for each calendar

guarter of service Independent non-employee directors are entitled to receve two awards of restricted stock or

restricted stock unsts of the Company each having a fair rarket value on the date of grant ¢f US$75,000 The first

award 1s 1ssued following appomtment of the director to the Board of Directors and the second award 15 135ued

followng the first board meeting in the calendar year following the manager’s iritial appotntment to the Soard of

Directors The Chairman receives €20,000 per month for his service as Chairman

EMPLOYEES
CEVA has developed and deployed a diversity and inclusion program led by a global diversity counail Diversity 1s about

understanding and appreciating differences — the vaiiety of perspeclives, epinions and contributians that we each
bring to the business Inclusion 1s about leveraging diversity to create an environment and culture that 15 welcoming,
collaborative and productive By embracing diversity and inclusion, CEVA is better equipped to understand
demographics and thus thrive in a global market CEVA's employees are a key asset to the business and CEVA’s goal Is
to attract, motvate and retain the highest performing workforce in the industry In order to realize CEVA's full
potential the best talent, from any background, 1s zllowed to nse to the top

One of the focus areas in our global diversity and inclusion program 1s disability Applicatians for employment by
disabled persons are always fully considered bearing \n mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicant
concerned CEVA’s policy 1s not ta disciminate against employees on the basis of disabiiity, Inadditian, 1t 1s the policy
of the Company that the trainung, career development and promotion of a disabled person should, as far as possible, be
identical to that of a person who does not suffer from a disabiiity

CEVA has adopted palicies and processes that are designed to support effective recruitment, retention and
incentivization of skilled employees and managers to fulfill thewr roles in the organization CEVA provides employees
with competitive salary packages with incentives tied to the operational objectives of the Company and the relevant
subsidiary as well as to individual performance targets

Qur performance measurement systern for Management tevel employees is designed to provide those employees with
regular feedback on thetr performance and to encourage the best work performance possible

We regularly consult with employees or their representatives with the aim of ensuring that their views are taken

inta consideration when decisions are made that are hkely to affect their interests and that all employees are aware of
the financial and economic performance of their business units and of the Company as a whole Communication with
employees continues through onfine and printed in-house newsletters, frequent bulletins, the global intranet and
includes two way feedback mechanisms

SHAREHOLDERS
Our substantial shareholders at 31 December 2013 are disclosed in note 28 “Related party transactions” of the financial

statements

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
As required by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, the directors of CEVA Group Plc have approved this report and
confirmed that, so far as each director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information {being information needed by
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the auditors in connection with preparing their audit report) of which the Company’s auditars are unaware, and that
they have taken all the steps reasonably required to be taken as a director in order to make humself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated thewr willingness to continue 1n office, and a

resolution that they be re-appointed as auditors of the Company wilf be proposed at the annual general meeting

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF CEVA GROUP PLC
The directars are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the Group financial statements m accordance with international Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union, and the parent company financial statements in accordance with
Urited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law}
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and the
Company for that year In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

s state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union (and IFRSs 1ssued by tASB) and applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Group and parent

company financal statements respectively
o prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless i1t 1s Inappropriate to presume that the

company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the
company’s transactions and disctose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posttion of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Acl 2006 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of finanaial statements may differ from
legislation tn other jurisdictions

By order of the Board
Al

Marvin 0O §

Drrector

30 Apnil 2014
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

€ mititons Note 2013 2612

Before gefore

specific Specific specific Speaific

tems  items’  Total items itemsl  Total
Revenue s 6415 5415 7,2:4 - 7,224
Wark contracted out (3,241) (3,241) 13,711} - {3,711)
Personnel expenses (1,870) (31) {1,901) (2,036) (30) ({2,066}
Other operating expenses {1,095) (28} (1,123) {1,226} (48) (1,274}
Operating expenses excluding depreciation, amortization and impairment {6,206) {59} (6,265) (6,973) (78) (7,051)
Otherincome 6 16
EBITDA 209 {a3) 186 251 (78) 173
Depreciation, amortizationand impairment 12 13 {163) - {163} (182} (312) {494)
Operatingincome 46 {43) 3 69 {320} (321)
Finance income {including foreign exchange movemenis) 9 7 112 119 5 - 5
Finance expense (incluging foreign exchange movements}) 9 {264} (30) (294} (316} {37)  (353)
Net finance expense {including foreign exchange movements) {257} 82 [175) {311) 37)  {3¢8)
Loss before income taxes {211} 39 _—(1 72} {242) {427 {669)
Income tax {expense)/income 10 (9)- T 9 (19) 7 (12)
Loss for the year from continuing operations {220} 57 (163} (261) (420) [681)
Attributable to _
Non-¢controlling interests 3 4
Equity holders of the Company {166) {685}
Loss for the year B (163) (681)
*Refer to note 6 “Specific items” for details

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
18
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF C@MPREHENSVE

INCOME

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
€ millions 2013 2012
Before Before
specific  Specific specific  Specific
tems  items!  Total  items  itemst Total
Lossforthe year TTTTTTTTTTTT T paey 57 (163) (61} [M20) (681
Items that wall n_o}_Ee__reclassnﬁed to Profit and Loss e
Actuanal gaing/{losses) on retirement benefit obligations 4 - q (24) - (24)
] L 4 - 4 {24) - (24)
“ltams that may be reclassified igggggtfq@oﬁt andLoss o :
Net investment hedges e 3 - 3 9 - 9
Currency transiation adjustment {14} - {14) 29 - 29
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, nat of income tax @27) 57 {170) (247} (820) (€67
_Attributable to e _______:":_::_ww T
Noncontrollingnterests ... . ... 3 1
Equity holders ofthe Company {173) (668)
.'—l’_oTal camprehensive loss for the year T T T {170) {667)

! Refer to note 6 “Specific items” for details

The above amounts are net of income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive income of €2 milkion (2012 €1

rmillion)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consohdated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMEER

€ milllons Note 2013 2012
ASSETS o
Non-currant assets -
intangible assets 12 1,378 1,521
Property, plant and equipment i3 _ 211 256
Deferred Income tax assets i4 — 6 4]
Prepayments 31 35
Other non-current assets 13 17
Total non-currént assets 1,639 1,835
Current assets
Inventary 15 13 15
Trade and other recelvables 16 934 1,087
Prepaymeants . 40 46
Accrued income 152 214
Income tax receivable 8 7
Cash and cash equivalents 17 416 257
Assets held forsale 18 1 125
Total current assets 1,564 1,751
TOTAL ASSETS 3,203 3,586
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders [
Share capital 20 _1 1
Share premium 382 382
Other reserves e 1146 402
Accumulated deficit {1 774) {1,608}
Attributable to equity holders of the Company (245) 823}
Non-coniroliinginterests 11 10
Total Group equity {234} (813)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 21 1 884 2,563
Deferred income taxliabilitles 14 26 61
Retiremeant benefitcbligations 22 87 114
Provisions 24 52 60
Qthernon-current liabilities 26 30
Total non-current liabjlities 2,075 2,628
Current habilitles
Borrowings 21 116 125
Provlsions 24 66 G5
Trade and otherpayables 25 1,178 1,366
Income tax payable 2 5
tiabilities held for sale 18 - 10
Total current hiabilities 1,362 1,571
3,203 3,586

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financiaf statements

The financial statements on pages 18 to 77 were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2014 and were signed

on its epalf by

larvin O Schlay
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMIBER

t

€ mtlheons Naote 2013 2012
Loss before income taxes S (172} |13
Adjustmentsfor . —— - -

- Share based compensation e e R - rd
_ Depreaation, amortization andimpairment - 163 454

_Fimanceincome . — ——2 (119) 53
_Galnondisposal ofproperty, plantandequlpment ____ _ ___ ___ @ )
__Foreign exchange (gains}andlosses 8 27 i6
__Finance expense _ __ I 266 337
LOthermcome e e e e m (1€) -
Change In pravisions e e e

__Retirementbenefitobligations _ _ o 22 {15) (9)
_ Provisions e o 24 {5} {2}
Changesin wurkmg_g_g_glta! . o
_dnventory _ __ __ U, 15 - 8
. Jradeandothervecelvables . .. 16 51 (s8)
_..Prepaymentsandaccruedencome e e e 59 (28)

Tradeandotherpayables . ... . (80) 69

[Changes innon-currentprepayments | __ . L. . 3) (12)
Changes in non-current accrued habihties (3} 4
Cash generated from operations e e 191 LS
Interest and otherfinancingcostpaid s (1486) (286}
Net income taxes paid 10 (25) (31}
Net cash from operating activities {(171) {337}
Divestments .. e e e e 129 1
CGapimalexpenditure o e e e e i69) (101)
Progeeds fromsale of property, plantandequipment . . 15 i7
interest received i 2
Net cash usedininvestingacuwiies 76 (81)
Issuance of shares o e 167
Repaymentofborrowlngs | . . . ke 2L (551) (818)
Proceeds fram nan-current barrowings 21 303 928
Proceeds from current borrowings 2 168 190
Dividends paid to hon-controlhingInterest {2} -
Net cash from financing activities a5 300
‘a;nge in cash and cash equivalents o T o 181 47
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod . 257 217
Fareign exchange iImpact on cash and cash equivalents (22} {7)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 17 416 257

Refer ta note 21 “Borrowings” for details of non-cash changes in borrowings and note 20 for non-cash changes in

equity shares

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable

toequity Non-  Total

Share Share Other  Accumulated holders ofthe controlling  Group

€milhons capital premium  reserves 2 defiot Company _Interests equrty
Balance at 2 January 2012 _ R W 7T (i35 (923) i675) 9 (666)
Currencytranslation adjustment S - - 2% - 29 (3} 26
Netinvestment hedges - 8 o 9 - 9.
Capital contributron' e - - 523 . = - -
Actuzria losses on retiremant benefit oblizatians : : @3 = (24) - (24}
Praofit/{Loss }attributable to equity holders for the year - - - (&85) {685) 4 (681)
Balance at 31 December 2012 /1 January 2013 I 1 382 402 {1,608} (823) 10 (813)
Currencytranslation adjustment e - - {14) - {14) 12) {16)

Metmwwvestmenthedges . . - - 3 - 3 - s

Capital contribution® - - 751 - 751 - 751

Actuarial losses on retirement benefit obligations e . - 4 - 4 B 4
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders for the year - - [166) [166) 3 {163)
Balance at31 December2013 1 382 1,146 {1,774} {245) 11 (234}

! Sge note 21 "Borrowings” for details on the Capital contribution

2 |ncludes totat currency transiation adjustment of €(74) mithon (2012 €{51) millian), a total net investment hedge reserve of €{22) mullion (2012 €(27) mulion}

and a cumulative actuanial loss of €(38) million {2012 €42) millien)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financtal statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERALINFORMATION

CEVA Group Plc {the "Company”} and its subsidiaries {together the “Group” or “CEVA”) design, implement and operate
complete, end-to-end Freight Management and Contract Logistics solutions for multinational and large and medium

sized companies on local, regional and global level

The Company was incorporated on 9 August 2006 in England and Wales as a public company with imited liability The
address of Its registered office 1s 20-22 Bedferd Row, London WC1R 445, United Kingdom

On 2 May 2013 CEVA completed a major financial Recapstalization CEVA Holdings LLC, a company formed 1n the
Republic of the Marshall Islands, became the immediate parent of the Company The ultimate controlling party of the
Company 15 Apalle Glohal Management, LLC {*Apclla’)

At 31 December 2013, the Company had senior secured, Junior prionty secured, second hen secured and senior notes
listed on the Global Exchange Market of tha Irish Stock Exchange (“ISE”}

These Group cansolidated financial statements were authonzed for 1ssue by the Boaid of Directors on 30 April 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these cansolidated financial statements are set out
below These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consoldated financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and in accordance with IFRIC
mterpretations The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financal habihties (including derivative instruments) at fair value

through profit or loss

In accordance with best practice, company management cansiders whether it is appropniate to prepare

the financial statements under the going concern principle CEVA prepares annual budgets, five year forecasts and
regularly supplements the budgets with quarterly forecasts during the year After reviewing this information in
conjunction with our avallable faclities and cur commitments to debt repayments, and considering the financial
recapitalizatron, Company management has concluded that the Group has adequate resources for the foreseeable
future Therefore the Group and the Company have continued to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of

the financial statements

The preparation of financizl statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting

estimates [t also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting
polictes The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3 “Critical accounting estirnates and

Judgments”

The Group’s operating segments are its Freight Management and Contract Logistics businesses which are the main
focus of the Group’s chief operating decision maker (“COBM"), the Executive Board of CEVA Group Plc (the “Executive
Board”) This is the primary way in which the CODM is provided with financial information The Group’s internal
organizatton and management structure 15 also aligned to the two businesses From a practical perspective, the Group
also manages its operations on a reglonal basis All reporting to the CODM analyzes performance by Freight
Management and Contract Logistics business activity, and resources are allocated on this basis Disclosure has been
included in the segment note to reflect these cperating segments As additional information the group has also
provided geographical information en rts resul{s
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Presentation of financzl information

The Group’s consolidated mcome statements and segment analysss separately identify operating results before specific
itemns Speafic items are those that in management's judgment are exceptional by virtue of their size, nature or
incrdence and therefore are separately disclosed on the face of the consohdated income statements in determining
whether an event or transaction 15 specific, management considers quantitative as weli as qualitative factors such as
the frequency or predictability of occurrence This is consistent with the way that financial performance 1s measured by
management and reparted to the Board of Managers and assists in providing a meaningful analysis of the operating
results of the Group Managernent believes that presentation of the Group's results in this way 1s relevant to an
understanding of the Group’s financial performance Furthermore, the Group considers a columnar presentation to be
appropniate, as it improves the clanty of the presentation and 1s consistent with the way that financial performance is
measured by management and reported to the Board of Managers Specific items may not be comparable to similarly
trtled measures used by other companies ltems that have been considered to be specific items include mtegration and
separation costs, gains and losses on individual debt transactions, business restructuring programs, asset impairment
charges and antitrust investigation costs Specific items for the current and prior year are disclosed in note 6

Adjusted EBITDA is a key financial measure used by management to assess operational performance It excludes the
impact of speafic items Previously this measure of performance was called EBITDA before specific items  “EBITDA” or
“earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization” Is not a measurement of performance or liquidity under
[FRS and shoutd not be considered as a substitute for profit / {loss) for the year, operating profit, net income or any
other performance measures derived in accordance with IFRS or as a substitute for cash flow from operating activities
as a measure of CEVA's parformance Because not all companies calculate EBITDA identically, the presentatrons of
£BITDA in this annual report may not be comparable to other sumilarly titled measures of other companies

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following standards have been adopted by the group for the first time for the financial year beginning on 1 January

2013

o |AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’ was amended in June 2011 Thisamendment requires the Group to replace interest cost
and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit hability {asset) The amendment to IAS 19 did not have any material impact on the Group's
pension liability, expenses and disclosures

e Amendmentto IAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation’ regarding other comprehensive imcome The main change
resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities to group items presented in ‘other comprehensive
income’ {OCH) on the basis of whether they are potentially rectassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments) This has been shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income The amendments do
not address which items are presented in CCl

o Amendment to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments ‘Disclosures’, on asset and hability offsetting This amendment includes
new disclosures to facilitate comparison between those entities that prepare (FRS financial statements to those that
prepare financial statements in accordance with US GAAP

o |FRS 13, Fair value measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of far value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
IFRSs The reguirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other
standards within IFRSs The Group uses level 1 and level 2 valuation methods for 1ts fair value measurements Level 1
refers to quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets and level 2 refers to Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observabie for the asset or liability, either directly (that s, as prices) or indirectly {that is,
derived from prices} This standard did not have a matenial impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods

beginning after 1 January 2013, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements

o IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and
financial hiabilities IFRS 9 was 1ssued in November 2009 and October 2010 It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate
to the classification and measurement of financial instruments IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into
two measurement categories those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortized cost The
determination 1s made at initial recognition The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument For financial kabilities, the
standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements The main change Is that, in cases where the fair value option s
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taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk 1s recorded other

comprehensive Income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch The Group 1s

yet to assess IFRS 9's full impact The Group will also consider the tmpact of the remaining phases of !FRS 9 when

completed by the Board

IFRS 10, ‘Consohdated financial statements’, builds on existing principles by 1dentifying the concept of cantiol as the

determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the

parent company The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control where this is

difficult to assess

o IFRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’, focuses on the rights and obhgations of the parties to the arrangement rather than iis
legal form There are two types of jomnt arrangements joint operations and jomt ventures Joint operations arise
where the investor have rights to the assets and obligations for the habihties of an arrangement A joint operator
accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses Joint ventures arise where the investors have
nights to the net assets of the arrangement, joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method Proportional
consolidation of joint arrangements i1s no longer permitted As from 1 January 2014 the Group will no longer be
consalidating Anji Automotive Logistics Company Limited {“Anyi”) The impact of using proportronal consolidation 13
disclosed in note 5 and 19 Instead the post-tax share of net income (see note 19) of Anji will be equity accaunted in
the consolidated financial statements of CEVA Group Ple from 2014 with comparatives restated to reflect the same
accounting treatrmentn 2013

o IFRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interestsin other entities’, includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements, assoctates, structured entities and other off balance sheet vehicles The
Group 1s yet to assess I[FRS 12's full impact and s required to adopt IFRS 12 no [ater than the accounting period
begmning on or after 1 January 2014

¢ IFRIC 21, ‘Levies’, sets aut the accounting for an obligation that pay a levy that1s not income tax The interpretation
addresses what the obligating event s that gives rise to pay a levy and when should a izbility be recognized The
Group 15 not currently subjected to significant levies so the impact on the Group 1s not expected to be matenal on

our annual results

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a matenal
impact on the Group

2 2 Consolidation

Subsidiarres
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally

accompanying a shareholding of mare than one half of the voting rights The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary 15 the fair value of the assets transferred, the habilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or hability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred Identifiable
assets acquired and liabifities and contingent fiabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date The Group recognizes any non-controlhing interest in the acquiree at the non-
controlling interest’s propartionate share of the acquiree’s net assets The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair
value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwill

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactrons between Group companies are ehminated
Unrealized losses are also eliminated Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

Joint ventures
Jomnt ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has Joint control, established by contractual
agreement and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions

The Group's interests i jointly controlled entities are accounted far by proportionate consolidation The Group
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combines its share of the joint ventures’ individual iInceme and expenses, assets and labilities and cash flows on a line-
by-line basis with simitar items in the Group’s financial statements

Transactions with non-controlling interests
Transactions with non-controliing interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions

— that 1s, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners The difference between fair value and any
consideration pald and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary 1s recorded i
aquity Gains or losses on disposals to non-controliing interests are also recorded In equity

When the Group ceases to have conirol, any retained interest in the enttty is remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or [oss The fair value s the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subseguently accounting for the retained interest as an asscciate, joint venture or financial
asset In addition, any amounts previously recognized 1n other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or abtlities This may mean that amounts
previously recognized tn other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a

shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the vating nights Investments in assoctates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting Under the equity methad, the investment 15 initially recognized at cost, and the carrying
amount 1s increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acguisition The Group’s investment in associates includes goedwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated

impawrment loss

tf the ownership interest In an associate 1s reduced but significant influence 1s retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognized 1n othel comprehensive income s reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses 1s recognized in the income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition mavements in cther comprehensive income 1s recognized 1n other comprehensive income

The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment When the
Group’s share of lasses 1n an associate equals or exceeds its Interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivahles, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf

of the associate

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there 1s any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate s impaired If this 15 the case, the Group calculates the ameunt of impairment as the difference hetween the
recoverable amount of the associate and 1ts carrying value and recognized the amount adjacent to share of
profit/{loss} of associates’ in the iIncome statement

Unrealized gans on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates Unrealized losses are eliminated unless they provide evidence of an impatrment of the asset
transferred Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group

Dilution gamns and losses ansing In investments In associates are recognized in the income statemant

23 Segmenireporting
Operating segments are reported in & manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the CODM The

CODM, who 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Board, which makes strategic decisions In addition, information frem a geographical

perspective has also been presented
[nter-segment pricing i1s determined at an arm’s length basis

Segment results, assets and habilities mclude ttems directly atinbutable to a segment as well as those that canbe
allocated on a reasonzble basis Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate cost centers, borrowings and income tax
assets and habilities
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Segment capital expendrture Is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets other than goodwill, which 1s disclosed separately

24 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included In the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of

the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional currency’) The consolidated
financial statements are presented in US Dollars {'USS’), which 1s the Group’s presentation currency  All values are
rounded ta the nearest million except where otherwise indicated

Per 1AS 21, the Company is deemed to be a “shell entity” with no operating activities and only carnes out financing
activities Finanong activities and equity are mamnly USS denorminated The functional currency of the Company 15

therefore identified as USS$

Transactions and balances
Fareign currency transactions In the Group’s entities are translated into the functional currency of the entity using

the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settfement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
habihties denominated in fereign currencies are recognized in profit and loss of the entity concerned

Group companies
The results and financial position of all Group entitias {none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)

that have a functional currency different from the USS are translated into USS as follows

a)assets and liabilities for each Consolidated Balance Sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that balance sheet,

b) Income and expenses for each Consolidated Income Staternent are transiated at average exchange rates, and

c} all resubting exchange differences are recognized 1n other comprehensive iIncome

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation 1s neither planned nor likely
In the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses anising from such a monetary item are considered to form
part of a net investrnent in a foreign operation and are recognized In other comprehensive income, and presented in
the translation reserve in equity Where a subsidiary that 1s a foreign operation repays such a guasi-equity loan and
there I1s no change in the parant’s percentage shareholding, the Group believes that this does not represent a disposal
or partial disposal and heace does not transfer the accumulated foreign exchange gains or [osses 1n equity 1o the

Income statement when this occurs

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the netinvestment in foreign operations and of
borrowings and other currency Instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive iIncome When a foreign operation s dispased of or sold, exchange differences that were previously
recorded in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit and {oss as part of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habilities of
the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate of exchange Exchange differences arising are recognized in other

comprehensive income

25 Revenuerecogmtion
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration receved or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group's activities Revenue is shown net of value-added tax and discounts and after

eliminating sales within the Group

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be relisbly measured and it 15 probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group This is usually when goods and services have been delivered but s dependent
upon the contractual terms agreed with the customer

Freight Management revenue is derived from international awr, ocean and domestic freight forwarding, customs
brokerage, deferred air and pickup and delivery, and other value-added services Revenue 1s recorded in gross terms
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when acting as an indirect carner Revenue is recorded net of transportation costs and freight insurance premiums
when acting as a carrter’s agent

In Freight Management, the Company 1s primanily a non-asset based carrier and as such owns only mited
transportation assets The majority of air and ocean freight revenue 1s obtained through the purchase of transportation
services from direct {asset-based) carriers and the resale of those services to customer s as an indirect carrier, such that
the Company 1ssues customers a contract of carriage Revenues related to shipments are recognized based on the
terms In the contract of carnage, pnmarily when goods reach their destination

Air and ocean freight forwarding revenue 1s also generated when acting as a carrter’s agent Such revenues comprise
commissiens and fees earned for the services performed and are recogrized on completion of those services Revenues
related to customs brokerage and other services provided at origin or destination are recognized an completion of the

services

Revenue in Contract Logistics represents the revenue from services to third parties related to contracts for supply chain
management, warehousing and distrnibution activities Revenue is recognized net of trade disceunts, credit notes and
taxes levied on sales when the service is rendered based on the contract with the customer

Accrued income represents goods delivered and services rendered which have notyet been invorced

26 Work contracted out
Work contracted out represents the cost of third party transport providers that we utilize to provide services to our

customers

27 Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses include cost of materials, rental expenses, maintenance and repair charges, professional fees

and other miscellaneous expenses Other operating tncome of USS4 million (2012 nil) representing insurance receipts
has been netted against other operating expenses on matertality grounds

28 Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as

operating leases Payments made unider cperating leases {net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease

Lease of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of

the leased property and the present value of minimum {ease payments

Each fease payment is aflocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance halance outstanding The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease perod so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period The property, plant and equipment
acquired under g finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the useful ife of the asset and the lease term

29 Finance income and expenses
Finance Income comprises interest income on funds invested, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss and gains on the purchase of finaneial habihties Interest income 1s recognized as It aecrues in
profit or loss

Finance expenses comprse interest expense on borniowings and changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss Borrowing costs on qualifying assets are capitalized All other borrowing costs are recognized In
profit or loss using the effective interest method

Foreign currency gains and losses are presented on a net basis
210 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax Income tax expense 1s recognized in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates toitems recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity In this case
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the tax 1s also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

Current tax Is the expected tax payable on the taxable tncome for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable In respect of previous years

Deferred mcome tax 1s recagnized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes Deferred income tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences the ininial
recognition of assets or habilities in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and differences refating to investments in substdianies and Jjointly controfled entities to

the extent that it 1s probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future In addition, deferred mcome tax s not
recognized for taxable temporary differences anising on the snitial recognition of goadwill Deferred income tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on

the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date Deferred income tax assets and
habilities are offset if there I1s a [egally enforceable night to offset current tax habilities and assets and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax autheorty on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entittes, but they intend
to settle current tax habilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously

A deferred income tax asset 1s recognized to the extent that it i1s probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized Deferred income {ax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that 1t s no longer probable that the refated benefit will be realized

Deferred income tax is not prowided on the unremitted earnings of substdiaries where the timing of the reversal of
the remitting temporary difference 1s contiolted by the Group and it1s probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse In the foreseeable future or where the remittance would not give rise to Incremental tax liabilities or 1s not

taxable

2 11 Intangible assets

Goodwiil
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net

identifizble assets, labilities and contingent habilities of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition Goodwill on
acquisition of subsidianies 1s included in intangible assets and 1s carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or mare frequentiy if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment The carrying vatue of goodwill 1s compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less cost of disposal Any impairment 1s 1 ecognized immediately as an expense
and Is not subsequently reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill

relating to the entity sold

Goodwtll is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing The zallocation 1s made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination

Goodwill 1s monitored at operating segment level

Contractual customer relationships
Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognized at fair value at the acquisition

date The contractual customer relationships have a finite useful hife and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization Amorhization 1s calculated using the straight-tine method to allocate the cost of the contractual customer
relationships over their estimated useful lives of between 10 and 20 years

Other intangibles
Other intangible assets mainly comprise computer software, licenses and brand names

Development costs that are directly attnbutable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group are recogmized as intangible assets when 1t can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits, there are adequate technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and to use the software product and the expenditure attrihutable to the software product
during rts development can be reliably measured Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are
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recognized as an expense as incurred Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amorttzed over
their estimated usefuf lives, on average three years

Separately acquired licenses are shown at histoncal cost Licenses acquired in a business combination are recognized at
far value at the acquisition date Licenses have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of licenses over their esiimated useful

lives of three to five years

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives which do not exceed three years

Other Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumulated amortizatron and accumulated impairment lesses Other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-hine

basis over their estimated useful ives of three to 20 years

2 12 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset Purchased software that s
integral to the functionality of the related equipment 1s capitalized as part of the cost of that equipment

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment 1s recognized in the carrymg amount of the item

if 1t 1s probahie that future economic berefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be
measured reliably The carrying amount of the replaced part 1s derecognized The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred

Depreciation
Land 1s not depreciated Deprectation on other assets is calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate their cost

or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful ecanomic lives {or period of finance lease, If
shorter), as follows

o Buildings 10-50 years
o Plant and equipment 2-10 years
o Other 3-10 years

The assets’ estimated residual values and useful economic lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropnate, at each
balance sheet date

An asset’s carrying amount 1s written down immediately to tts recoverable amount If the asset’s carrying amount 1s
greater than Its estimated recoverable amount

Disposal
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds

from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized in profit or [0ss

2 13 Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefintte useful hfe, for example goodwill, are not subject to amorttzation and are tested annually

or earlier in response to a triggenng event for impairment Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable
Animpairment loss 1s recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use For the purposes
of assessing irmpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units) Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date
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2.14 Financial assets
Classification
The Group classifies 1ts financial assets into two categories (a) at fair value through profit or foss and (b} loans and

recelvables

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition

Firancizl assets at faun valua through piofit or loss

Financia! assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading A finanaal asset 1s classified In
this category of acquired principally for the purpose of seling In the short term Derivatives are classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges Assets in this category are classified as current assets

Loans and recewvables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in

an active market They are included in current assets, except for matunities greater than 12 months after the balance
sheet date These are classified as non-current assets The Group’s loans and receivables comprise trade and other
recervables and cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of inanaal assets are recognized on the trade date — the date on which the Group
comnuts to purchase or seli the asset Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized
at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the Consolidated Income Statement Finanoial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the ivestments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all nsks and rewards of ownership Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value lLoans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective

interest method

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or foss’ category
are presented in the Consolidated Income Statement within ‘net financial expense’ in the period in which they anse
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss s recognized in the Consalidated Income
Statement when the Group’s right to receive payments is established

If the market for a financial asset s not active (and for unlisted secunities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques These include the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models, making maximun use of market
inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs

2 15 Dervative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group can hold denvative financral instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures
Embedded dervatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if they are not closely
related, that is1f the economic charactenistics and risks of the host contract and the embedded derivative would meet
the definition of a derivative and the combined instrument 15 not measured at fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives are recagnized imtially at fair value, attributable transaction costs are recogrnized in profit or loss when
incurred Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value with changes recognized rmmediately
in the profit orloss The Group does not apply hedge accounting for its dervative financial instruments

The Group uses certain borrowings to hedge net investments The Group apphies hedge accounting to foregn currency
differences arising on net investment between the functional currency of the foreign operation and the functional
currency of its parent or intermediate holding company, regardless of whether the net invesiment 1s held directly or

through an intermediate parent

The Group documents at the inception of the hedge the relationship between hedging instrument and hedged item, as
well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge The Group also dacuments its
assessment, both at hedge inceptton and on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instruments that are used are
highly effective in offsetting changes in the hedged items’ spot rate revaluation attnbutahle to the hedged nisk
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Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in other
comprehensive Income The gain or loss relating to the meffective portion is recognized in the income statement
When the hedged foreign operation 1s disposed of or sold, the relevant amount in the translation reserve Is transferred

to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal

2 16 Inventenes
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value Cost1s determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)

method Net reahzable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses

2 17 Trade recevables
Trade receivables are recogrized inittally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest method, less provision for impatrment A provision for impairment of trade recervables is established when
there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
the recervables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade recesvable 1s impaired The amount of the provision 1s the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the oniginal effective interest rate
The carmang amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss 1s
recognized in profit or loss When a trade recewvable 1s uncollectable, it 1s wnitten off against the allowance account for
trade recevables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss

In a nen-recourse factoring arrangement, when the Group has transferred substantially alt the risks and rewards of
ownership of the recewvables, the trade receivables are derecognized in their entirety In a factoring of receivables with
recourse the Group recognizes the factoring arrangement as a financing transaction, that s, a habtlity is recognized for
the amounts received from the factor

2 18 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents inciudes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current Liabilittes on the Consolidated Balance Sheet to the extent that there is no nght of offsetand no

practice of net settiement with cash balances

2 19 Assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

If the carrying amount of the non-current asset {or disposal group) will be recovered principzlly through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use, the Group will classify the asset (or disposal group) as held for sale For
this to be the case, the assel, or disposal group must be availzble for immediate sale In 1ts present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and custemary for the sale of such assets (or disposal group) and its sale must be highly

probable

Upon classification the assets (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell

2 20 Share capital

Common shares
Common shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of common shares and

share options are recognized as a deduction from equity net of any tax effects

Authonized shares
The authorized share capstal of £699,965 divided into 3,500,000,000 ordinary shares of a par value of £0,0001 each

and 350,000 deferred shares of & par value of £0 9999 each

As at 31 December 2013, CEVA Holdings LLC holds 3,499,650,000 ordinary shares of a par value of £0 0001 each {$9%),
CIL Urmited (formerly known as CEVA Investments Linuted} holds 349,999 ordinary shares of a par value of £0 0001
each and 349,999 deferred shares of a par value of £0 9999 each and Lows Cayman Second Holdeco Limited holds 1
ordinary share of a par value of £0 0001 and 1 deferred share of a par value of £0 9999 {CIL Limited and Louss Cayman
Sacond Holdco Limited together holding 0 01%) The deferred shares in the capital of CEVA Group Plc (the “Company”)
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have no rights, powers or benefits attached to them whatsoever and, without tmitation, shall not confer on the
holders of deferred rights any right

- torecewe notice of any general meeting of the Company, or

- tobeable to atiend, spezk or vote at any general meeting, or

- toshare i a dividend dedlared by the Company, or

- toappomnta director ¥

2 21 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated

at amortrzed cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value Is
recognized in profit or loss over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Borrowings are classified as current habihties unless the Group has an unconditional night to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recagnized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent thatitis
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down In this case, the fee 1s deferred until some draw-down
occurs To the extent there 1s no evidence that it 1s probable that some or all of the facihty will be drawn down, the fee
15 capitalized as a pre-paymant for hiquidity services and amortized over the penoad of the faality to which it relates

A financial hability is derecognized when it 1s redeemed or otherwise extinguished, that 1s when the obligation 13
discharged, cancelled or expired An exchange between CLVA and a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms 1s accounted for as an extinguishment of the onginal financial hability and the recognition of a new
financial habtlity [f the new terms are not substant:ally different the transaction is regarded as a modification

If a portion of a financial hiability 1s purchased, the previous carrying amount of the financial iability 1s aflocated
between the portion that continues to be recognized and the portion that is derecognized based on the relative fair
values of those respective portions on the date of the repurchase The difference between (a} the carrying amount
allocated to the part derecognized and (b) the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
habilies assumed, for the part derecognized are recognized In profit or loss

The fair value of the non-current interest bearing debt has been presented using the available market price at the
balance sheet date or otherwise using the face value The senior bank debt's fair value has been presented using its
face value, as 1t 1s a private floating rate facility, and the fair value of current debt has been presented using Its carrying

value given its short-term nature

2 22 Employee benefits
Pension obligations
The Group operates a number of defined contribution and defined benefit penston schemes

(2) Definad contnbution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into

a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as a personne! expense (n profit or loss when they are due
Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is

avallable

{b} Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan ather than a defined contributron plan The ltability

recognized in respect of defined benefit pension plans 1s the present value of the defined benefit obligation at

the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets The defined benefit obligation 1s calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method The present value of the defined benefit obligation s
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by the yield at the reporting date on AA credit-rated
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefrts will be paid and that have terms to matunty
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation

All actuanal gains and losses ansing from defined benefit plans hrave been recognized immediately in other
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comprehensive income Interest expense on the pension obligation and interest income on the return on zssets are
recognized as a net amount in finance income and expense

Other long term employee benefits
Other long term employee obligations include long-service, sabbatical or Jubilee leave, long term disabihity benefits and

deferred compensation not payable within 12 months after the end of the period The expected costs of these benefits
are accrued over the period of employment using the same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit
pension plans except for actuaral gains and losses, which are recorded 1n profit and loss These abligations are valued

annually by independent, qualified actuaries

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment 1s terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or

whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy 1n exchange for these benefits The Group recognizes
termrnation benefits when it has demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or provided termination benefits as a result of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date

are discounted to their present value

Share based compensation
The Group operates equity-settled share based compensation plans, under which the Company recerves services from

employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Company The fair vaiue of the employee services
receved 1n exchange for the grant of the options is charged by the Company and 1s recognized as an expense by the
Company The total amount to be expensed 15 recognized by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market service and performance vesting conditions Non-market vesting condrtions
are included n assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest The total amount expensed 15
recognized over the vesting period, which is the penod over which all of the specified vesting candriions are to be
satisfied At each balance sheet date, the Group revises Its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting conditions The Group recognizes the impact of the revision to ariginal estimates,

If any, 1n profit or loss

Short term benefits
Short term ermnployee benefit obiigations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related

service I5 provided

A habiity s recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash benus or profit-shaning plans if
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this ameount as a result of past service provided by

the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

2 23 Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present fegal or constructive obligation that can

be estimated reliably and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
Prowvistons are measured by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation

Provistons for insurance represent an estimate, based on historical experience, of the ultimate cost of settling
outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date on certamn risks retained by the

Group

2 24 Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method
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3 CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMIENTS

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with geneaally accepted accounting principles under IFRS as
adopted by the EU requires the Group to make estimates, judgments and assurnptions that may affect the reported
amounts of assets, labilities, revenue and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and habilities in

the financial statements Estirmates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future avents that are believed to be reasonable under the arcumstances

The accounting estimates will, by definttion, rarely equal the related actual results Actual results may differ
significantly from these estimates, the effect of which is recognized :n the period in which the facts that give rise to
the 1evision become known The estimates, judgments and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing

a matertal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year are outlined below

3 1 Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually, or earlier in response to a triggering event, whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in

accordance with the accounting policy stated in notes 2 11 "Intangible assets” and 2 13 “Impairment of non-financial
assets” The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-tn-use calculations
These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions consistent with the most up-to-date budgets and
plans that have been formally approved by management Refer to note 12 "intangible assets” for the key assumptions

used for the value-in-use calculations

3 2 Income taxes

The Group Is subject to Income taxes in numerous jurisdictions Significant judgment is required in determmuning
the worldwide provision for incoms taxes There are many transactions and calcufations for which the ulumate tax
determinztion 15 uncertain during the ordinary course of business Where the final tax outcome of these mattersis
different from the amounts that were mtially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax provisions in the period in which such determination 1s made

3.3 Retirement benefits
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis

using a number of assumptions The assumptions used in determiming the net cost {income) for pensions include the
discount rate Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension obligations

Defined benefit schemes are reappraised annually by independent actuaries based upon actuarial assumptions
Significant judgment 1s required in determining these actuartal assumptions Refer to note 22 “Retirement benefit
obligations” for the principal assumptions used

3 4 Prowvisions and contingent liabilities

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending In vartous jurisdictions Due to the uncertainty inherent in
such matters, it I1s often difficult to predict the final outcome The cases and claims against CEVA often raise difficult
and complex factual and legal 1ssues These are subject to many uncertainties and complexities, including but not
limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in
applicahle law In the normal course of business, we consult with legal counsel and certain other experts on matters

retated to litigation

We recognize a provision when it 1s determined that an adverse outcomne s probable and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated in the event that an adverse outcome Is possible and an estimate 1s not determinable, the matter
is disclosed Refer to note 27 “Contingencies” for further information regarding contingent habtlities

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial nsk factors
The Group’s operating activities expose 1t to a vaniety of finanaial risks, such as market nisk (including foreign currency

exchange risk, interest rate sk and commodity price risk), credit nsk and liguidrty risk The Group's overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financtal markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance The Group uses derivative financiat instruments to hedge certain nisk
exposures Financtal risk management is carried out by Group Treasury under policies approvad by the Board of
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Directars of CEVA Group Plc Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financizl nsks in close co-operation with
the Group’s operating umts The Board provides wntten principtes for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covermng specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the use of derivative
financlal nstruments and non-denvative financial instruments and investment of excess hquidity Although the Group
enters into derivative contracts for risk hedging purposes, we do not apply hedge accounting for such denwvative financial

instruments

The following analysis prowvides quantitative information regarding our exposure to the financial risks described above
There are certain limitations inherent In the analyses presented, primanly due to the assumption that rates change in

a parallel fashion and instantaneocusly In addition, the analysis is unable to reflect the complex market reactions that
normally would anse from the market shifts assumed

{a) Market risk
Foteign eurtency exchange risic
The Group operates internationally and 1s exposed to foreign currency exchange risks arising from future commeraiaf

transactions, recognized assets and Lhabihties, investments and divestments in foreign currencies other than the Euro,
the Group's reporting currancy

The main currencies of our external hedges are the United States dollar, Chtnese yuan and Euro Sigmificant acquisitions
are typically funded in the currency of the undertying assets We have established policies which require Group
compantes to manage their foreign eXchange risk against their functional currency Group companies are required to
report their relevant foreign exchange risk exposure to Group Treasury To manage therr foraign exchange risk arsing
from future commeregaal transactions and recognized assets and liabilities, entities in the Group use forward contracts,
transacted with Group Treasury Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognized
assets or habilities are denominated 1n a currency that is not the entity’s functional currency

CEVA has certain invastments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk
Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group's foreign aperations 1s managed primarily through

horrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies

The main exchange rates are shown below

2013 2012

yYearend closing Average Year end closing Average

Brtshpound T T 08323 08401 D8126 0811l
MSdoliae . e 13789 13279 13197 12856
Chinese yuan 8 3460 8 1652 52299 81126

A five percent strengthening of the following currencies against the Euro at 31 December 2013 would have increased
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below This analysis assumes that all other variables, m
particular interest rates, remarn constant The analysis 1s performed on the same basis for 2012

€millions 2013 2012
Effect on profit before Effecton Effect on profit before Effect on

tax equity tax equity

Brushpound T T T (1) 3 1 7
Usdollar 9) 56 (6) 59
Chtnese yuan {2) 11 i 13

A five percent weakening of the above currencies against the Euro at 31 December 2013 would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain

constant

Cash flow and faw value interest rate risk
Interest rate risk 1s the risk that unexpected interest rate changes negatively affect the Group’s results, cash flows and

equity Medging activities are meant to protect CEVA against changes in interest rates
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The table below shows the interest rate profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial instruments-as of 31" December
2013 and 2012 {refer to note 21 “Barrowtngs” for further detalls)

€ mullions 2013 2012
Carryingvalue Carryingvalue

“I;;xed Rate Instruma n;; . e .
Loans and [bannotes 1,386 1,837

Variable Rate lnstrume;ns e _—
Financial habilitres 614 851
Total 2,000 2,688

Sensitrvity analysis for vanrable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased {decreased) profit or loss by
the amounts shown below This analysis assumes that all other vanables, n particular foreign currency rates, remarn
constant The analysis was performed on the same basis as for 2012

€ millions 2013 2012
Effect on profit before tax Effect on profit before tax
Changeininterest rate before tax before tax
Boro . .l +ic0basispomts_ @) 2
Euro_ . - ___-l00basis points 3 2
usdollar _____#100basis ponts (3) (5]
Usdollar -100 basis points 5 5

Commaoadity rnisk

As a supply chain company, CEVA s exposed to the risk of an increase in the price of fuels, principally diesel gasoline
The Group typically has an ability to pass on fug! price increases to customers and has not therefore entered into any
contract to hedge any specific commodity risk

(b} Credit risk

The collectability of accounts recevable 15 assessed on a monthly basis, where the method of determining the
reduction is tallored to the spectfic business environment and takes into consideration the history of the reporting unit
The Group 1s focusing strongly on the cash generating capacity of its businesses and acknowledges the importance of
strong credit control which 15 monitored through periodic detailed analysis of overdue trade receivable balances

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financiat nstruments and deposits with banks as well as
the risk that counterparties fail to meet their contractual payment obligations through insolvency or default as well as
credit exposures to customers The credit risk of a denvatives portfolio overiaps market risk, since it 1s the replacement
value of the portfolio that the Group s likely to lose If the counterparty fails In order to reduce legal risk resulting from
derivatives, CEVA strives to have an International Swaps and Derivative Association agreement in place before entering
nto derivatives For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of “A-'
from Standard & Poor’s ar equivalent rating from Moody's are accepted Group Treasury only trades with its defined
relationship banking group unless trading outside this banking group is required either for operational needs or
provides significantly better terms and conditions

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure to credit nsk
at the reporting date was

€ midlions 2013 2012
Loans and re?e—l\;a_t;les . ________H‘ T H 945 1,105
Cash and cash equivalents 416 257
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(c} Liquidity risk -

Liguichty 115k 1s the risk that the Group does not have sufficient headroom (cash and cash equivalents plus central credit

facilitres described 1in note 21 “Borrowings”) available to meet both our day-to-day operating requirements and debt

servicing obligations (Interest and debt repayment) As is typical of global, integrated companies such as CEVA, cash1s

often held in various jurisdictions in which the Group operates and may not be immediately available to Group

Treasury Group Treasury mitigates liquidity risk by seeking to ensure that CEVA has adeguate funding at its disposal at .
all times and helping facilitate access to the money markets and capital markets This includes relationship

management with all financial stakeholders, such as banks, rating agencies and debt investors

The recapitalization strengthened our liquidity with approximately €165 rmllion of proceeds from equity capital from
our new shareholders, i1ssuance of approximately €65 mullion of additional 4% Sentor Secured Notes and reduced debt

levels and interest expenses

The US ABL facility witially matured on 19 November 2015, but was refinanced on 31 December 2013 and now matures
on 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding drawn amount of the US ABL Facility was €111

million

As at 31 December 2013, CEVA Group Plc had €416 million {2012 €257 nullion} in cash on its Consolidated Balance
Sheet In addition to this cash, CEVA Group Plc has access to €401 million (2012 €422 million) of credit facilities held
centrally, of which €272 muflion (2012 €383 mullion) was drawn Total headroom at 31 December 2013 was therefore

€545 millien (2012 €2%6 million)

The table below analyses the amounts of interest beanng borrowings and trade and other payables into relevant
maturity groupings hased on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual matunity date

£ milhons 2013
Presentvalue of
minimum [ease Future mumum Intereston Trade and other
payments Interest leasepayments Loannotes Bankborrowings borrowings payables
lessthanivear . . __ .11 __a_ 3 __ 5 _"""es _Taso " | 1178
iS5vears . . . . .. ... \2 .8 ____._.._.26 .. . €88 _ 542 . sa8_ _ . ___ _
Thereafter 17 12 29 523 3 486
Total 45 25 70 1,346 644 1,164 1,178
€ miilions 2012
Present value of
minimum lease Future minimum Intereston  Trade and other
payments interest leasepayments Loannotes Bankborrowings borrowings payables
essthanivear .. . 8 __ 3. o m T T as T a7 | 13,
Abwvears | . . o228 . ....31 357 .. .. ..B0%._ . .. 849 . ______ =
Thersafter 138 i4 32 1,001 102 201 -
1okl 48 26 74 1,758 952 1,287 1,358

The interest on borrowings with a vanable interest rate has been calculated by using the year end rate The tables
above exclude aggregate mintmum operating lease payments totaling €947 milhion (2012 €1,063 millhion} that are

disclosed in note 26 "Cammitments”

Captial management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which comprises our paid in capital and horrowings, are to safeguard

the Group’s abihty to continue as a going concern n order to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal caprtal structure to reduce the cost of capital
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As at 31 December 2013 the Group had a caprtal structure which utilized a high proportion of structured debt to equity,
which was historically adopted because debt financing was viewed as a cheaper source of capital than equity financing
During the year the Group announced a Recapitahzation that reduced consolidated net debt by approximately €1 2
bitlion as described in note 21 “Borrowings” The structure of our debt and facilities is a combination of long term debt
secured ta finance our acguisitions 1n 2006 of the TNT contract logistics business and 11 2007 of the EGL Inc freight
management business and medium term faciliies which are available to support shorter term hguidity requirements
The majority of our interest rates are fixed and as of 31 December 2013 there no material debt repayments due until

November 2018

Fair value estimation
The fatr value of the dervative finaneial instruments at 31 December 201315 nif (2012 nul} As at 31 December 2013

there were foreign exchange and interest derivative contracts with a notronal amount of €10 rmillion (2012 10 rmithon)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker 15 the Executive Board The Executive Board reviews the Group's internal reporting
to assess performance and allocate resources Management has determined the operating segments based on these

reports

The Executive Board considers the operations from a business perspective in addition, information from a
geographical perspective has also been presented

Operating segments
o Freight Management including the prowision of international air, ocean and domestic freight forwarding, customs

brokerage, deferred air and pick up and delivery, and other value-added services,
e Contract Logistics including the provision of inbound logistics, manufacturing support, outbound/distribution
logistics and aftermarket logistics

Additional information —geographical
& Americas (including the United States of America, Canada, Brazi, Argentina and Mexico), |
o Asia Pacific {including Australia, China, Stngapore, Thailand, Malaysia and India),
a Europe {including the United Kingdem, Ireland, the Nardics, Benelux, France, Germany, Eastern Europe, Italy, Spain,
Turkey and Greece, Middle East and Africa)

Segment results, assets and habilities include ttems directly attributable to a segment as weli as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis Unallocated items mainly comprise borrowings and income tax assets and habilities
The Group’s customer base s highty diversified, with no indivtdually significant customer

The Executive Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amoartization (“Adjusted EBITDA”) Interest income and expenditure are not included in the result for
each operating segment that 1s reviewed by the Executive Board The information provided to the Executive Board Is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the financial statements
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Operating segmernts
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows

£€millians 2013
Freight Contract
Management Logistics Total

Totglsegmentrevenve T T amas T 3se3 T 76436
Inter-segment revenue - (21) {21)

Revenue from external customers 2,843 __. 3572 6415

_Operating expenses excluding depreciation, amortization andimpawment - (3,811) (3398%) _ $,206)

T S 2 AR T
Specficiems L T T LT o kL

EBITDA 166

Depreciation, amortzation apd mpawrmens 0 . . T (163)

QOperating income 3

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2013 and the capital expenditure for the year then ended are as
follows

€millions 2013
Freight Management Contract Logistics Unallocated Total

Totalassets _ 1,680 . 1,469 54 ~ _E,Z(;Bm

Totallmbimes D UT 0 ne LSS 34

Capital expenditure 17 52 - 69

The reported Adjusted EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2013 includes €13 million {year ended 31 December
2012 £16 mihon), as well asrevenue of €256 million (2012 €148 million}, from joint ventures

CEVA Group Plc - Annual Report 2013

40




The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows -

€ mullions 2012
Freight Contract

Management Logistics Total

Totalsegmentrevenve T T T Saaa 3,909 7,253

Inter-segment revenue {2) {27} 29}
Rewenue fromertewnal customners, 3,342 3882 7224
“Operatingexpenses excluding depreciation, amortizationand (3,240) (3.733) (6.973)
“Adjustedl EBITDA 102 1469 251
Seatems T : : oo
“ERITDA - - 173

D S SRR T T T T I T T
.Gpera'mgmcomr: (221}

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2012 and the capital expenditure for the year then ended are
as follows

€ millions 2012
Freight Management Contract Logistics Unallocated Total
Totatassets T _ageo T ama T s T 3586
Totai habilities 591 1,036 2,772 4,399
Capital expenditure 24 77 - 101

Additional information - geographical
The geographical results for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows

€ millions 013
Americas Asia Pacific Europe Total
Total segment revenve T 2013 Ti7e9  Tap37 6A79
Inter segment revenue {24) (12} 28) {64)
Revenue fromexternalcustomers o L%8  3737 2669 5415
lb;:_—gzggmg expe'nse_s&ﬁdﬁB’g'EZp"FE?.;EE, aAr%-t;r“tEaLaJ—;ndlmpalrment {1,907) _j—:.—— {.‘LT?Z?] _:_______ (2,572) i Yé“iﬁéi
Adjusted EBITDA o 82 30 97 209
Seectferems ~ U . )
EBITDA - . - . "5
Depreciation, amertizattonand |mpa|rmenr . . N ;__:_; - {163}
Operatlngir::‘ome T I

The geagraphical assets and llahilities at 31 December 2013 and capital expenditure for the year then ended are

as follows
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Ermillions - 2013

Amencas Asia Pacific Eurape Unallocated Total
Totalagsets T T Tse T st T way T 83 3203
Jotallabiles . o380 425 . 937 .. _Msss 3437
Capital expenditure 24 19 26 - 69

The geographical results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows

€ mutlions 2012
Amercias Asia Pacific Eurcpe Total
Totalscgmentrevenve T T T o010 Talas T 208 7,319
Inter-segmentrevenue {33) (16) {46) {55)
Revenus frome ternal customeis N B B 2,179 N 2,109 2,536 7,724
65@@1’.6@;&?& excludingdeprec:ation, amertization a nd :mpax_-r_m._e_nt _- ) (2_,_11(_)) _ ) i2j(§51“)_w o n(2?842) (é,_g?g)-
el _' T % w TR
Speefitems o)
ERITDA - S . 173
P:e_;lrg_gatlan,gmrnzanon_and impairment :__-_q o ___ -:j_: :— B . T F____' _-:::E—QZ)—
Operzting incoms ’ T T (32”._

The geographical assets and liabilitres at 31 December 2012 and capital expenditure for the year then ended are
as follows

€ mithons 2012
Freight Management Contract Logstics Unallocated Total
Tewimsen T L D ame T T i U Taa T s
Jotallabdiies e S . L A06 T L . .- -
Capital expenditure 24 77 101

The entity 1s domiciled 1n the Umited Kingdom The result of its revenue from external customers in the UK1s €562
mtlhon {2012 €609 mulion), in the Urnited States 15 €1,457 million {2012 £3,588 mulfion}, in China 15 €831 mullion (2012
€998 mullion) and in ltaly 15 £626 mullion (2012 €729 million) The total revenue from external customers from other
countriess €2,892 million {2012 €3,300 million)

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets

and rights anising under surance cantracts located in the United Kingdom 1s €151 million {2012 €197 mullion) and the
total of these non-current assets iocated in other countries s €1,482 million {2012 €1,628 million}

6 SPECIFIC ITEMS

€ milltons 2013 012
Personnelexpenses T T T 31 30
Other operatingexpenses e 28 48
Otherincome e e« e (16) -
A ent e et vt 4 e e - 312
Financencome (112} -
Finance expense 30 37
Tetal (income)/expense {39) 427
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Personnel expenses
In 2013 and 2012, personnel expenses are largely related to one time severance payments as a result of site
optimization and labor claims mcurred in relation to the cost reduction program announced n November 2012

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses (n 2013 and 2012 include expenses related to the outsourcing and optimizing our finance

processes and streambining our freight management systems, as well as expenses related to the on-going industry wide
antitrust investigation For 2012 it atso includes expenses associated with the disposal of the Intermediate Bulk

Contairer Business that was completed in 2013

Other income
On 2 January 2013, CEVA Logistics completed the sale of its European Container Logistics business and Asia Pacific

Pallecon business {together forming the Intermediate Bulk Cantatner (“IBC") Business) The sale price of €135 million
resulted In a gain on disposal of €16 million The gain1s calculated after deducting goodwill and intangibles of €85
million, transaction costs of £6 million and eurrency translation differences of €2 mitlion that were previously

recognized In othel comprehensive income

Impairment
No goodwill impairment charges were recognized for the year ended 31 December 2013 as a result of the annual

goodwill impairment testing (2012 €312 mutlion) The prior year non-cash impairment charges were primarily driven by
the impact on business valuations from significantly lower forecasted cash flows from revised internal 5 year
prejections, reflecting recent experiences and potential future chalienging economic and competitive conditions

Finance income
On 2 May 2013, the Group successfully closed the Recapitalization announced and commenced on 3 April 2013 The

Recapitalization reduced consclidated net debt by approximately €1 2 billion, further strengthened hquidity with €165
million of proceeds from equity capital from our new shareholders, and received additional liquicity of €65 million
through a financing from certain funds and accounts managed by Frankhn Advisers, Inc and Franklin Templeton

tnvestments Corp ("Frankiin")

The specific items 1n 2013 comprise a garn of €97 million {net of €34 mulkion of transaction costs) arising on the debt for
equity exchange referred to above and detailed in note 21 plus a gamn of €41 million arising on part of the above debt
exchange transaction involving an exchange of Frankkn’s holdings of 8 375% nates for 4% notes with Franklin as well as
the reversal of accrued interest payable of £71 million that was waived as part of the Recapitalization

Finance expense
Finance expenses relate to finance charges incurred i relation to debt transactions For the year ended 31 December

2013, finance expenses include €26 million of accelerated non-cash amortization of debt 1ssuance costs as a result of
the Recagitalization and €4 mllion of transaction costs For the year ended 31 December 2012, finance expenses
include €35 million of accelerated non-cash amortization of debt issuance costs in 2012 as a 1esult of a previous

refinancing completed on 1 February 2012 by the Company

7 PERSONNEL EXPENSES

€ mullions 2013 2012
___\._'V_a_éesand salaries __ T M:h__ _:“_ " 1,657 1,783
Employee benefits and social expenses . . _ 224 238
Pension costs - defined henefitplansinote 22y (11) 9
Pension costs -defined contnbutionplans . 30 29
share options granted to Directors and employees 1 1
Total personnel costs 1,901 2,056

Ypension costs from defined benefit plan Includes negative past service cost of €26 million in Europe
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Average number of people employed
The average number of persons (including executive directors) employed by the Group during the year was as follows

2013 2312
FreighiMamamement | e 10,213 12,016
Contract Logistics 36,360 38,433
Total 46,573 50,449

The above disclosure excludes the total average headcount at Any of 7,841 1n 2013 (2012 8,774)

Directors and executive managemeant emoluments

€ thousands 2013 2012
"MarvinSchianger T T T T T 1,086 333
MarcBecker L e e ——— 22 -
TomWRIte e e e e e 508 53
Muchaellupiter e e e 22 39
StanParker L o e e e e 22 36
AlaaMiller e e e e e e et e ¢ et sen e 38 -
EmanuelPearlman e e e e e 38 -
J_Q_IJELH_IEE e 38 -
DawnWetherall _ — " T 150 -
Other executive management 3,670 4,933

5,594 5,394

Directors and other executive management {key management) emoluments inciude salaries of €4 million (2012 £€5
million), accrued bonus provisiens of €1 million (2012 nif) and share option expenses of nil {2012 aul} Managers and
other executive management received €357 thousand (2012 €120 thousand) for pension related costs

Share options and restricted stock units granted to the Directors of CEVA Group Plc and other executive management
are shown in the table below

Outstanding at Waeighted
31 December Granted Excercised Forfeited average
2012/1 tanuary dunngthe duringthe duringthe  Outstandingat31 exercise
Number ofshare options 2013 year year year December 2013 price in €7
SRR L T Ay T T T T s
Tomwhite | U - IATT s L e .
Alantiller L L il Do R e e
EmanualPearlman L. LIS il Il
JohnSmuth = T e P e e T o ol
Dawnwetherall 2 L _ BT Ll e ee w87 83346
Other executive management - 6,516 - - i 5,516 595 21
Total - 11,510 - - 11,510 644 58

Yincludes a total of 2,172 restricted stock units
2ghe share options granted are exercisable USS and translated into € using the closing exchange rate

The restricted stock units are related to CEVA Holdings LLC stock units and will be converted into common shares upon

vesting
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8. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR REMUNERATION

During the year, the Group obtained the following services from its independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
and I1ts associates

€millions 2013 2042

Fees payable tothe Companvs auditor and its assocrates for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements o 2 2

The au_d_[:cwofthe Companyssubsldlanes pursuanttolegislation 2 2

Fees paid to the Company's auditor for other serices ~
TaxservICes e e et 1 1
Taxadvisory services e

Services relatingto corporate finance transactions not covered above - -
All gther services 2 -

Tatal 7 [

independent auditor remuneration is recogrized in other operating expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement

9  FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE

€ millions 2013 2012
T 7 5
Other financial income 41 -
Ftnance income 11% 5
Intere-s_t-;cpe nse on ba nﬁSF@TﬁE;"H__:_ o j_—- _:‘::___t {198) (255)
interestonfinancelease habthees {4) {4)
Net forelgn exchange losses R R (27} (16)
lnterestexpense onretirement benefit obllgatlons e {2) {3)
Other financial expense {53) {75}
Finance expense (294) {353)
Net finance expense .~ T/ (175} {242)

Other financial expense includes the amortization of debt issuance costs of €40 million (2012 €42 million)

During 2013, the Group continued to define certain net investment hedge relationships, whereby foreign exchange
movements pertaiming to these defined relationships are recognized directly in other comprehensive income rather
than in profit and loss As at 31 December 2013 €133 mullion (31 December 2012 €525 nullion) of borrowings was
designated as a net investment hedge

Cther financial Income comprise specific items in 2013 which includes a gain of €87 million (net of €34 nuliion of
transaction costs) arising on the debt for equity exchange, plus a gain of €41 mullion anising on part of the above debt
exchange transaction (invalving an exchange of Franklin’s holdings of 8 375% notes for 4% notes with Frankiin} The
transaction also included the reversal of accrued interest payable of € 71 milllon that was waived as part of the
Recapitalization, which 1s included in the line item “interest income”
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE - - - - -

€ millions 2013 Z0132
Current tax expense B 26 20
Deferred tax expense {35) (8}
Income tax expense {9} 12
Income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive income 1s €2 million {2012 €1 miklion}
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rates
applicable in the United Kingdom on the profits of the consolidated entities as follows
€ milions 2013 2012
Theor:e;caﬁaxcharg; /(mcame)“______ _"T—_—_:::_ . :_—_: :” N ___:: (20) 23 4% {ies) 24 5%
Permanent differences e i
Naon deductible other costs e N 5 (2 94 2 {0 3)%
Non deductible write off of goodwill e 76 (11 4)%
Non taxable repurchase ofdebt e - 11 (16)%
Difference betweenlocaland UK taxrate .~ {24} 14 0% {18} (2 7%
Other movements e e e
Deferredtax assets notrecognized ontemporary diiferences 39 {22 8y% 60 (0%
Deferredtaxesnotrecognizedonlosses  ~ — _  ___ ____ 8 (4 7p% 55 {82)%
Other income tax expense ! 3 {1 8)% {i0) 15%
Actual tax charge (9) 53% 12 {1 8)%

The 2013 effective tax rate 1s 5 3% (2012 (1 8)%} The 2013 and 2012 rate was impacted by uncertainty over the future
utihization of losses and the Company’s debt and equity financing The 2013 rate was also impacted by the non-taxable
gain on the sale of the Container Logistics Business and the 2012 rate was impacted by the impairment of gocdwall

11 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The Company did not complete any materizl acquisitions in 2013 and 2012
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12, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Contractual
customer Other
£ millions Goodwill relationships intangbles Total
T Y S V-~ SR S - )
B T T T T T T e
Amortization e e e e - {73) 27} (90)_
!mpalrment T i 312 - - {312)
Ti'a_rgjqred tg disposal groupciassmed as heldfor_;_a_lg e 85} . y ____(§§_)_
Exchange rate dlffe:ences {9) 4) (1} (14)
Transfers - - - -
Llosmg lle_g_lgggkamount st 31 December 2017 1,134 354 33 1,521
Histoncalcost . 1,462 771 301 2,534
Accurmnulzted amortization and impament (328) {417) [268) {1,013}
Net bookamount at 31 December 201_2:[ 1January2013 1,134 3154 a3 1,521
Addiwons e - - 17 17
Amortizston - (74) (20) (94)
Plsgg_@jw e e e e e e o - - (1) 1
Transferred to disposal group classﬁ"ed as held for sate e (1} (1)
Exchange rate differences {52) {12) (1} {65)
_Closmg net bookamountat31 Decemher2013 1,082 268 28 1,378
Histoncalcost T T T T T 1,410 759 316 2,485
Accumulated amartization and impairment {328) (491) {288) {1,107}
Net bookamount at 31 December 2013 1,082 268 28 1,378

Impairment tests for goodwil
Goodwill 15 subject to annual impairment reviews These reviews are carried out using the following crteria An amount

of goodwill 15 attributed to each of the operating segments Such operating segments are determined to be a “Cash
Generating Unit” (CGU) as determined by IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” The recoverable amaunt of each CGU 1s
determined based on calculating its value in use The value In use 1s calculated by applying discounted cash flow
modeling to management’s own projections covering a five year periad  Cash flows heyond the five year period are
extrapolated using a long term growth rate of 2% which does not exceed the estimated long term GDP giowth rates for

the most relevant ternitories in which the businesses operate

The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December as allocated to each of the Group’s two 1dentfied CGUs s as follows

€ millions 2013 2012
g ansgmen L T LTI
Cantract Logistics 277 287
Total goodwill 1,082 i,134

Management's five year projectiens have been prepared on the basis of strategic plans, knowledge of the market,
performance of competitors and management’s views on achievable growth in market share over the longer term

The impairment charges in 2012 were primanly driven by the impact on business valuations from significantly lower
cash flows from revised internal projections reflecting recent experiences and potential future challenging economic

and competitive conditions

The projections for Freight Management demonstrate a robust market position, however, the uncertainty concernng
the outlook for the economy around the world has suppressed the projections such that the remaining value of
goodwill was impaired to €847 million in 2012 No impairment losses were recognized for the year ended 31 December

2013

The revised projecttons for Contract Logistics incorporate the increasing weaknesses in various key markets,
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particularly in the Southern European economies, while afso considering management’s actions on cosis The
remaining value of goodwill was impaired to €287 mullien in 2012 No impairment losses were recognized for the year

ended December 2013

Key assumptions
The key assumptions used in determming the value In use are

Growth rates and discount rates used

2013 2012
Growth rate Growthrate
beyond five Pre-tax beyond five Pre-tax
years discount rate YEArs discounirate
_Freight Management e o 2 0% 34% 2 0% _ 14 1%
Contract Loglstics 2 0% 13 4% 2 0% 14 1%

After five years of management projections, a long-term growth rate into perpetuity of 2% has been determined by an
estimated nominal Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate

The discount rates applied to cash flows is based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital (WACC) adjusted for
income tax The WACC 1s calculated based on a weighted average of the post-tax interest rates paid on our loans, and a
return on equity based on the equity market risk premium (that 1s the required increased return required over and
above a risk free rate by an investor who 1s investing in the market as a whole} and the risk adjustment, beta, applied to
reflect the nisk of the Group relative to the market as a whele The beta used 1s based on an average of the betas of
what management constders to be the most comparable listed logistics companies

Projected EBITDA
The five year projections for Adjusted EBITDA have been prepared using strategic plans which include key assumptions

for growth tn sales and costs over this period These assumptions take into account knowledge of the current markets
n our Freight Management and Contract Logistics segments, management's views on the development of our services
relative to the market and the impact of the cost reduction activities that were carried out in 2012 and 2013

Budgeted capital expenditure

The cash flow forecasts for capital expenditure are based on past experience and include the ongoing capital
expenditure required to implement new projects and mantain existing activities 1n our Contract Logistics segment and
grow and mamtam our Freight Management network Capital expenditure includes cash outflows for the purchase of

property, plant and equipment and computer software

Net Workmng Capital (NWC) levels
Projections for NWC levels are based on the actual NWC needs of the Freight Management and Contract Logistics

segments duning the last three years

Result
No goodwill impairment losses were recognized for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012 €312 million} as a result

of the goodwiil impairment testing

Sensitivities
A sensitivity analysis has been performed on each of the base case assumptions used for assessing the goodwiil with

other variables held constant Consideration of sensitivities to key assumptions can evolve from ene financial year to
the next
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The tabile below shows the sensrtivity impact of changes in key assumptions by CGU

€ millions 2013
Freight Management  Contract Logistics Total
Becense miomtemeromiate ol0 5% T T e T T T T e T T Ay
Increasempretaxdiscountrateoft% . . B8 @eo - (198)
Decrease in projected EBITDAOfS% e e e k) I 17 N & 1-Y)
Warsening in the projected NWC levels of 10% e _ . 7) 2 I )
Increase in projected camtal expenditure of 10% {31) {81) {112)

The table above shows the change in headroom as a result of a change in assumptions affecting the headroom None
of these would indwidually lead to an impairment for either the Contract Logistics or Freight Management segment
The recoverable amount of the Freight Management segment 1s €1,144 million and of the Contract Logistics segment is

£1,462 millien

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Landand Plantand Under

€ millians buildings equipment Other construction Total
_-I_Gsl b;l:" zmount a1 January 2012 ‘ 129 122 54 37 362
Addrtions 15 33 23 [ 77
_Disposals {2) (10 {2} - {14)
Depreciation (18) {47) {27} - (32)
Impairment - - .

Exchange rate differences 1 - 1 - 2

Acquisittons - . - - -
_T_[eﬁferredtodlsposalgroupclassmedas held forsale 1) (25) - - (28)

Transfers 4 - 1 {5) -
Clesingnetbooftzmount st 31 Decemhe: 2012 1.8 74 EC & 256
Historical cost ) ) 239 324 205 a 772
Accumulated depreclation and impairment {111) (250) {155) - {516)
Netbookamountai 31 December 2012 /1 January2013 128 74 50 4 256
Addwons e 7 19 20 7 53
Disposals e (1) @) (8) - (13)
Depreciation e . e e (18) (23} {25) - (66)
dmpaement . i3) - - - 3

Exchangerate differences =~ {6) (5) 3) (1) (15)
_'ﬁ_afogI@_quligpsalgrnupclassuﬁed as heldforsale {1} - - - (1)
Transfers - 5 (5} -

Closingnet hookamount at 31 December2013 106 61 39 5 211
Histencaleost . 239 334 219 s 797
Accumulated depreciation and impairment {133) {273]) {180} - (586}

Net book amount 2t 31 December 2013 106 61 39 5 211
Finance leases
The following assets held under finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment

Landand Plantand

€ millions butldings equipment Gther Total
Under inance lsase 31 becembaraony . T TTTIIT T T T T T R,

Uader finance lease 31 December 2013 16 15 1 TT31
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14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred iIncome tax assets and labilities are offset when there ts a legally enforceable right to offset and when
the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority The amounts are as follows

€ milfions 2013 2612
efmaers T T

Deferredincome taxassets {21} {51}
Deferred income tax liabilities 61 106
Netdeferred Income taxhabitles o 2 58
e T T T e

Deferredincometaxassets .. oo - (6) (6]
Deferred iIncome tax liabilities 16 61
Net deferred income taxhabilitles 20 55
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration

the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, 15 as follows

Deferred income tax assets

Goodwill  Losses
andother carried
£ mitlions Pravisions Intangibles forward Other Total
Balance o+ 1 January 2012 i3 25 18 - 72
Transfers ~ ] 3) 3 1 10
_Exchange rate differences {1} (i} - 1 (1)
Income statement effect {6} {12) {13) 1 {30)
Deferrad income tax assets at 31 December 2012 /1 January 2013 31 9 a 3 51
Transfers (1) 10 {11) 3 1
Exchange rate differences (2} (3 (5}
Income statement effact {5} {11) 13 (3) {6)
Defarred income tax assets at 31 December 2013 23 B8 10 - 41
Daferred income tax liabilities
Praperty, plant
€ mithons and equipment intangibles Other Total
Tﬁ:;lai1ce 2] denvay 2032 a 142 {1} 145
J’f_aml‘ers 19 (12) i {1}
ng_cha nge rate differences - (1) 1 -
Income statement effect (13) {24} (1] (38)
Deferred incame tax habilities at 31 Decembear 2312 / 1 January 2013 1 105 - 106
Transfers 9 [28) 20 1
Exchange rate differences {4) (1) (5)
Income statement effect {1} {22) {18} {41)
9 51 1 61

Deferred income tax habilities at 31 December 2013

Deferred mcome tax assets are recogrized for tax losses carned forward to the extent that the realization of
the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is considered more likely than not The Group did not recognize
deferred income tax assets of €8 million (2012 €55 milkon) i respect of losses amounting to €47 million (2012 €216

million) that can be carried forward against future taxable income for a period hetween one year and an indeftnite
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pernod of time

15. INVENTORY

€ millions 2013 202
Rawmaterials andsupplies = B . 10 12
Finished goods 3 3
Total inventory 13 15

The provision for inventory obsolescence s nil (2012 rul)

Movements i inventory are recorded in other operating expenses in the Consolidated Income Statement

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

€millions 2013 2012
Traderecewables T T 842 1,050
Provision for impairment of trade receivables {27} (36)
Trade aceounts recewvable - net o e 815 1,074
VATrecewable " T T T T T T T T 25 30
Qther 94 43
Otherreceivables - . . 119 73
"Tctal trade and other recelvabres T T 934 1,87

Other receivables include amounts receivable from insurance companies -and from tax authonties
The fair value of trade and other receivables approximates its carrying amount

At 31 December 2013 non-recourse factoring resulted in the derecognition of €70 million {2012 €102 million) of trade
receivables

The Group has liabilities of €138 million {2012 £158 million) related to financing secured by receivables which it
includes in bank borrowings These refate to arrangements in which the Group remains exposed to some or ali of the
bad debt nsk related to these trade receivables Based on the borrowing bases and advance rates of these
arrangements, over €167 milion {2012 over €190 million) of trade recevables are financed pursuant to these
arrangements The Group has not derecognized these trade receivables as it may incur losses in respect of poor
collection performance and retans the benefits of collections in excess of the factoring liabilihes

During October 2012, certain Australian subsidiaries of the Group entered into a Recevables Purchase Agreement with
a faciity it of A$40 million maturing in September 2015 Recewables sold under this agreement are not
derecognized and the related habilities are included in bank borrowings

On 19 November 2010, certain US subsidiaries of the Group and a new subsidiary CEVA US Recewvables LLC
(Unrestricted Subsidiary) entered into agreements establishing an Asset Backed Loan (ABL) Facility with an imitial
commitment amount of U$$200 million On 30 November 2010, the committed amount of the ABL Facility was
increased to USS250 militon The obligations of the Unrestricted Subsidiary under the ABL Facility are secured on a first-
priority basts by all currently owned and subsequently acguired assets of the Unrestricted Subsidiary, including, but not
hmited to, all of the accounts recetvable transferred to the Unrestricted Subsidhary by the US subsidiaries On 31
December 2013, CEVA closed the refinancing of this instrument resulting in a maturity extension and increased
availabihity The ABL Faclity matures on 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding drawn amount

of the ABL Faciity was US$153 million The transaction has been accounted for as collaterslized borrowing (refer to
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note 21 “Borrowngs”) Following an event of default by the Unrestricted Subsidiary under the ABL Facility loan
agreement orif a specified liquidhty event occurs, the lenders have the right to receive the cash flows from the pledged
recewvables torepay the outstanding loans under the ABL Facility Absent an event default or kiquidity event, the
Unrestricted Subsidiary will callect the recewvables and all new recervables transferred to the Unrestricted Subsidiary by
the US subsidiaries will be collateral Receivables seld under this agreement are not derecognized and the related
labilities are included i bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of €114 million (2012 €196 mition) were past due but not impaired These
receivables relate to a number of independent customers for whom there 1s no history of default The ageing profile of
trade receivables past due but not impaired 15 as follows |

€mllions 2013 2012 |
Pastdue 0-30days e 67 109
Past due 31-60 days o 18 32
Pastdue 61-9C days e 8 i6
Pastdue 81-120 days e 5 10
Pastdue morethan 121 days 16 29
Total 114 196

Due to our continued focus on collections i this area, our overdue recelvables have decreased as a percentage of Lotal
receivables Thiswas primaniy driven by our continued efforts to collect outstanding debt as seon as 1t1s due

The carrying amount of the Group's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies

€ millions 2013 201z
ewo . 226 270
Usdellar L 278 301
UK pound sterllr:a—g‘ e e e e e e 63 61
Other currencies 393 491
Total 961 1,123

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

€ millions 2013 2012
By T T T 26 52
Charged to other operatingexpenses 17 11
_Recewables wntten offduring the yearas uncollectable (25) 7)
Unused amounts reversed {1} -
At 31 December 27 36

The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in other operating expenses in
the Consolidated Income Statement Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there
1s no expectation of recovery

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets

The maximum exposure to credit nisk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of recewvables mentioned
above

17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

€ millions 2013 2012
Cashatbank__ _ 261 152
Current bank deposits 155 ias
Total cash and cash equivalents 416 257
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Cash and cash eguivalents are available for use by the Group Bank overdrafts are included within interest bearing

horrowings {note 21 “Barrowings”)

18 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

Following the commitment of the Group’s management, a property in Asia Pactfic was classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2013 The assets and habihities held for sale as per 31 December 2012 related to the CEVA Logistics European
Container Logistics business and Asra Paaific Pallecon business (together forming the Intermediate Bulk Container

Business) which was sold on 2 January 2013

The assets classified as held for sale are presented below

€ mithons ASAT31 DECEMBER
2013

ASSETS

Non-currentassets R . e e — —

Intangibleassets e e s e
Property, plantandequipment .

Prepayments -
Total non-current assets 1

Lurrent assets
Invertory o __
Trade and other receivables I o ~ il
Other current assets -
Total current assets

s b mmm = i o Lmeiat = & 4 % mam e ae n e e e i 1

TOTAL ASSETS

19. JOINT VENTURES

The Group has one sigmificant joint venture being a 50% interest in Anjl Automotive Logistics Company Ltd, a company
which 1s incorporated in China and provides contract logistics services The following amounts represent the Group’s
50% share of the assets and liabilities, sales and results of the joint venture They are included using proportional
consolidatien in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Consolidated Income Statement of the Group

€ milhons 2013 2012
Assets T T T Ll
Non-currentassets = R 48 28
Currentassets | L iiie o i e e e 96 78
Xebibbes — T T T T T LT
Current habihties 79 76
Fetasmets v mmmmmmmmmmm o e e 65 e
Revenwe ~ " TCC T T T T 256 148
Depreciation andamortisation o (6} (2}
Bnancialcome L ol e e e - 1 -
Other expenses’ {242) {136)
Profit / {loss) after iIncome tax 9 10
AdjustedeBiipa T T v mermmmm e T T 13 i6
Tfr-a;—:ortlonate |ntere§fﬁjoint venture's commutments - T 14 14
Yincluded in other expenses s €0 muhan (2012 €4 mullon} tax expense
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The joint venture had no contingent habilities as at 31 December 2013 (2012 nul)

20 SHARE CAPITAL

Nomunal

Number of ordinary value per

shares Deferred shares share £

Afewaryzors 350,000 - 1

Reclassified durngtheyear T T (350,000) 350,000 09999

I1ssued during the year 3,500,000,000 00001
Authorized share capital per 31 December 2013 3,500,000,000 350,000

At 31 December 2013 the authornized and 1ssued share capital comprised 3,500,000,000 ordinary shares (2012
350,000) and 350,000 deferred shares {2012 0), reclassified from ordinary shares The ordinary shares have a nominal
value of £ 0 0001 each {2012 £1) Asat 31 Decermnber 2013, CEVA Holdings LLC holds 3,499,650,000 ordinary shares of
a par value of £0,0001 each (99%), CIL Limited (formerly known as CEVA Investments Limited) holds 349,999 ordinary
shares of a par value of £0 0001 each and 349,999 deferred shares of a par value of £0 9999 each
Lowis Cayman Secaond Holdco Limited holds 1 ordinary share of a par value of £0 0001 and 1 deferred share of a par
value of £0 9999 (CIL Limited and Lows Cayman Second Holdco Limited together holding 0 01%)
Each deferred share has the right to a retuin of capital upon a winding up after the holders of ordinary shares have
receved the amount paid up on such erdinary shares plus a premium of £ 10,000 per ordinary share The deferred

shares in the capital of CEVA Group Plc (the “Company”) have no rights, powers or benefits attached to them

whatsoever and, without imitation, does not conifer on the holders of deferred rights any right

- torecewve notice of any general meeting of the Company, or
- tobeabhle to attend, speak or vote at eny general meeting, or
- tosharein a dividend declared by the Company, or

- toappoint a director

21. BORROWINGS

The carrying amounts and fair value of borrowings are as follows

€ nmilhions 2013 201z

Carryingvalue Fairvalue Carrying value Fairvalue
Noncurrent .
Bankborrowings = e e 531 542 818 835
Loan notes e 1,319 1,313 1,705 1,560
Finance leases 34 34 40 40
.T‘qtalnun-cy_{rentbarrowmgs e 1,884 1,889 2,563 2,435
Swrent .
Bankoverdrafts e e B2 82 38 o8
Bankborrowwngs 17 17 19 19
Loan notes e 5 5 -
Finance leases 12 12 3 ]
Totalcurrentborrowings . L. e e 116 116 125 125
lotal bE_";E_‘,’[’_'Eg,S, e e 2,000 2,005 2,688 2,560
Omamorined debi susnce costs T 33 70
Totalprincipal debt 2,033 2,758
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Non-current horrowings

The fair value of the non-current interest bearing debt has heen presented using the available market price (level 1) at
the balance sheet date or otherwise using the face value The senmor bank debt's fair value has been presented using its
face value, as It 15 a private floating rate facility, and the far vatue of current debt has been presented using its carrying
value given Its short-term nature The average floating Interest rate for the year was 5 2% (2012 5 0%) and 4 9% (2012

§ 7%) for Euro and for US$ denominated loans respectively

Current borrowings
The carrying amounts of current borrowings approximate their fair value

Terms and debt repayment schedule
Amountdrawnat Amount drawn at

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
Currency  Momenalinterestrate  Matunty {millions) {millions}

Semjor secured facilities - tranche B Euro s JEURIBOR+5% August 2016 €103 €103
Sentor secured facilities -tranche 8 _USdoliar . _USLIBOR+5% Auvgust2016_ . $393 $485
Senior secured facilities -revolver ____ Euro, ... . ... ....EURIBOR+d4% November2015 - £65
Seniorsecured faciities-revolver__ _ _USdollar . PnmeRate+1 5% November2015 - 552
Firstiensentorsecurednotes, . USdollar . . 8375% December2017 $562 $775
First-and-a-halfprionty lensemor___ _USdollar ... ... ... 11625% October2016 ___ __ 5210 - $210
Juntor prionty lien senior secured USdallar___ . 11 50% Apn) 2018 512 5702
A2%seniornotes, . ... Buro_____ . __ __ _1200% Sentember2014 ___ €5 €11
JA275%semiornotes . USdollar, ... . .. 1275% March2020 _ __ $43 5620
Semorunsecuredloans_ __Usdollar __ 9 75% June 2018 _ - 5113
USABL facility. ___Usdollar _ _USLIBOR+(2%-2 5%) December,2018 ____ $153 $164
Australianreceivables facihity, . ... AUdollar __ _ _____ BBSY+5 28% September2015, . AS39 ASA0
_Bank overdrafts I various __ . Lo Vanous Vanous €82 €111
Finance lease figbilitigs Nanews_ . Manous_Various €45 £47
10%secondlienPlKindenture ., . Usdollar _ __ —— o 10% Mav2023 5724 £0
Otherloans, various e e W aripus _Various €36 €24
4% senror notes Usdollar 4% May 2018 53390 -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies

€ milhions 2013 2012
Euro_ e e 147 742
_g.f.gg_l[au'__ e e i 1,709 1,832
Other currencies 144 114
Total 2,000 2,688

Debt and equity funded firancing 1n 2013
On 3 April 2013 CEVA Group Plc announced and commenced a financial recapitalization plan that would reduce

substantially CEVA’'s overall debt and interest costs, as well as increase hquidity and strengthen its capital structure {the
"Recapitalization") On 2 May 2013 the Recapitahization successfully closed The Recapitalization enables CEVA to serve
its customers better, accelerate its growth throughout the world and fund the development of new supply chain
products and services The Recapitalization reduced consolidated net debt by approximately €1 2 billion, 1s expected to
reduce annual cash interest expense by over €130 rmillion or approximately 50%, further strengthened hquidity wvath
€165 million of proceeds from equity cap:tal from our new shareholders, and received additional hquidity of €65
million through the financing from certain funds and accounts managed by Franklin Adwisers, Inc and Franklin
Templeton Investments Carp ("Frankhin”), one of our largest institutional investors CEVA utilized the new money for

investment n its business plan

Folfowing the Recaprtalization, CEVA Holdings LLC became the 99 99% shareholder of CEVA Group Plc In the
Recapitalization, equity interests held by affiliates of Apollo in CIL Limited, the former parent of CEVA Group Ple, were
ehminated, and Apolle affiliates acquired a stake of 21 4% in the equity of the Company through exchanging CEVA
Group Plc debt 1t held and through the cash purchase of equity, while Franklin acquired a stake of 27 8%, and funds
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affiliated with Capital Research and Management Company {"CapRe") acquired a stake in excess of 15% both through
exchanging CEVA Group Plc debt Upon receipt of regulatory approvals, CapRe's stake became 28 9% WNo other
shareholder holds 5% or more of the equity of the Company Pursuant to the LLC Agreement, Apollo affiliates hold a
majonity of the voting power of the Company and have the right to elect a majority of the respective boards of tha

Company and CEVA Group Plc

The Recapitalization involved the {ollowing transactions

e €518 million principal amount of Junior Prionty Senior Secured Notes exchanged for equity in CEVA Holdings
LLC, which then released the notes and received a like amount of new junior priorty senior secured 10% PIK
notes due May 2023 1ssued by the Company Each US51,000 of Junior Priority Senior Secured Notes validly
tendered by eligible holders received 0 4855082 CEVA Holdings LLC Series A-2 Convertible Preferred Shares
and 0 2242813 CEVA Holdings LL.C Common Shares

e €434 million principal amount of 12 75% Senior Notes exchanged for equity in CEVA Holdings LLC, which then
released the notes Each US$1,000 of 12 75% Senior Notes validly tendered by eligible holders received
0 4144362 CEVA Holdings LLC Common Shares

o €6 million (USS8 mullion) principal amount of 12% Senior Notes exchanged for equity in CEVA Haldings LLC,
which then released the notes Each €1,000 (US$1,307) of 12% Semor Notes validly tendered by eligible
holders received 0 5035416 CEVA Holdings LLC Commen Shares

o €85 mulion principal amount of Senior Unsecured Loans exchanged for equity in CEVA Holdings LLC, which
then released the loans Each US$1,000 of Senior Unsecured Loans validly tendered by eligible holders
receved 0 3929161 CEVA Holdings LLC Common Shares

o €69 million principal amount of Term Loans and €160 mullion principal amount of 8 375% Sentor Secured
Notes were released by Franklin in return for €229 mithon principal amount of new 4% Sentor Secured Notes

o CEVA alsc obtained a commitment from this investor to purchase an additional principal amount of
new 4% Sentor Secured Notes equal to the USS equivalent of €65 millioa at CEVA's option

a €165 million capital Injection was received from CEVA's new ultimate shareholders for the 1ssue of Series A-1
Convertible Preferred Shares of CEVA Holdings LLC

o Interest payments were made on the Junior Priority Senior Secured Notes and 12 75% Senior Notes remaining
outstanding after the Recapitalization in respect of amounts due 1 April 20313

¢ Payments of accrued interest amounting to €71 million were not made on the Term Loans and 8 375% Senior
Secured Notes being released and this amount has been reversed {see note 6}

o Theexchange of Term Loans and 8 375% Senior Secured Notes held by Frankhn for new 4% Senior Secured
Notes, whose terms were otherwise unchanged, has been accounted for as an extinguishment of the old debt
and 1ssue of new debt with a resulting gain on extinguishment of €41 million {see note 6) A fee of €2 mitlion
was paid to Franklin in the form of commaon shares as a commitment fee, treated as a debt issuance cost, to
purchase additional 4% Senior Secured Notes in a principal amount of approximately €65 million from CEVA
Thus facihity was drawn down during the year

¢ A 10% PiK (“Pay in Kind”) note, due May 2023 1s inciuded in the total amount listed for loan notes, which
comprises a principal of €557 million and interest of €9 million The fair value {excluding accrued interest} of
the note was €512 million Interest on the note 1s added to the principal until matunity

o The capital contribution of €751 million arising as a result of the restructuring and recapitalization, was
calculated based on the capital injectton and the elements of debt in this transaction that were released with
holders receiving a ke amount of CEVA Holdings LLC shares

Bank borrowings
As at 31 December 2013 the Company has drawn €74 milhion (2012 US$104 rmullion) under the revolving credit facility

In additton to the term bank loans, the Group hasa €123 milhon (2012 €126 million) synthetic letter of credit facility
whuch 1s avatlable for the issuance of letters of credit and bank guarantees On 2 May 2012, the Group completed a
refinancing of its synthetic letter of credit faclity due 2013 by increasing its existing term loan due 2016 by €114

million

Approximately €191 million of letters of credit in various currencres were 1ssued but undrawn on 31 December 2013
(2012 €171 million) under the synthetic etter of credit facility and revolving credit facility The remaining amount
unissued under our synthetic letter of credit facility as at 31 December 201315 €6 million (2012 €7 mullion)
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The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities which expire beyond one year

€ millhions 2013 2022
Wﬁoatmg ratg_“_ T “::_— 135 46
Fixedrate - -
Tota! 135 a5

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had €416 million (2012 €257 mullion} in cash on tts Consolhdated Balance Sheet
In addition to this cash, the Company LLC has access to €401 million (2012 €422 rmilhion) of credit facilities held
centrally, as described above, of which €272 million (2012 €383 million) was drawn Total headroom at 31 December
2013 was therefore €545 million (2012 €296 million)

Certain covenants and events of defaulit
Our indebtedness contains, and any future indebtedness we may incur would likely contain, 2 nurmber of restrictive

covenants that will impose significant operating and financiad restrict:ons on us, including restrictions on our ablty to,
amongst others, Incur or guarantee additional debt, pay dividends and make other restricted payments, create or incur
certain liens, make certain Investments, engage In sales of assets and subsidiary stock, enter into transactions with
affiliates and transfer all or substantially all of our assets or enter into merger or consolidation transactions [n addition,
our senior secured credit facihittes require us to maintain a maximum ratio of secured first hen net debt to covenant
EBITDA of 4 Oto 1 0, calculated for the trailing four quarters {as determined under our senior secured credit faaility)
The definitston of covenant EBITDA allows us to add back certain non-cash or non-recurring charges that are deducted in
determining net income (for example, restructuring costs) and te add the future benefit of speafic cost reductior
programs As at 31 December 2013 the Group had significant headroom on this covenant

Interest rate and fees
The interest rates applicable to loans under the senior secured facilities are, at our option, equal to either an alternzte

base rate or an adjusted LIBOR for a one, two, three or six-month interast periad, or a rine or 12 month penod, if
available from ali relevant lenders, In each case, plus an applicable margin

Notes
The Group’s secured notes are senior obhigations of the issuer and the guarantors, secured by liens on certain of the

1ssuer’s and the guarantors’ existing and future assets The liens securing the 8 375% first lien senior secured notes and
the semor secured faciities rank senior to the liens securing the other secured notes The liens securing the Group’s
Iren-and-a-half priority senior secured notes ranks seruor to the liens securing the juntor-priority senior secured notes
but junior to the liens sacuring the firstlien debt The Group's senior notes and senior unsecured loans are unsecured
senior obligations of the 1ssuer and the guarantors

Each series of notes containg customary covenants and events of default that, among other things, restrict, subject to
certain exceptions, our ability and the ability of our subsidiarres, to incur indebtedness, sell assets, make investments,
engage 1n acquisitions, mergers or consolidations and make dividend and other restricted payments

Each series of notes may be redeemed at our option at certain redemption prices, plus accrued interest Upon
the occurrence of certain change of control events, each holder of notes may require us to repurchase all or a portion
of its notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount of its notes, plus accrued interest

On 21 November 2011, we entered inte amendments to the agreements governing the Senior Unsecured Facility, the
Extended Senior Notes and the Extended Semior Subordinated Notes Pursuant to such amendments, instead of
receiving scheduled interest payments in the fourth quarter of 2011, Apollo agreed to recewve accrued and unpaid
interest on 1 February 2012 in exchange for a nominal consent feg, the purpose of which was to improve the balance

of the timing of CEVA’s interest payments
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US ABL facility due 2018
On 19 Novemnber 2010, certain US subsidiartes of the Group and a new substdiary CEVA US Recervables LLC

(Unrestricted Subsidary) entered into agreements establishing an Asset Backed Loan [ABL) Facility with an imitial
commitment amount of US$200 milhon On 30 November 2010, the committed amount of the ABL Facifity was
mcrezsed to US$250 rithon The abligations of the Unrestricted Subsidiary under the ABL Facility are secured on a first-
priority basis by all currently owned and subsequently acquired assets of the Unrestricted Subsidiary, including, but not
mrted to, all of the accounts receivable transferred to the Unrestricted Subsidiary by the US subsidianes On 31
December 2013, CEVA closed the refinanaing of this instrument resulting in a maturity extension and increased
availabthty The ABL Facility matures on 31 December 2018 As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding drawn amount

of the ABL Faality was US5153 milhon

Austrahan Recervables Facility due 2015
On 1 October 2012, certain Australian subsidiaries of the Group completed a AS40 million receivables purchase facility

due 2015 As at 31 December 2013, the ocutstanding drawn amount was A$39 milhion (AS40 million)

We also refer to Note 29 for details on the post balance sheet refinancing

22 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a number of pension plans around the world, most of which are defined contribution plans CEVA
has a smalt number of defined benefit plans of which the main ones are based in Italy, the Netherlands, the United
Kingdem and the United States The plans in the Unsted Kingdomn and the United States are closed to new members
The majonty of benefit payments are from trustee-administration funds, however, there are also a number of
unfunded plans where the company meets the benefit payment as it falls due

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

€ miltions 2013 2012
Fresenivalve offundedobligations, T T o 169 211
Fairvalue of plan assets 103 99
Total 86 112
‘Reimbursement nght T 1 2
Liabiiity in the balance sheet 87 114

Italian pension plan
In accordance with the Trattamento di Fine Rapporto (“TFR’) legislation in Italy, employees are entitled to a termenation

payment on leaving the company The TFR regulation changed from 1 January 2007 and employees were given

the option to either remain under the prior regulation or to transfer the future accruals to external pension funds

The funded provision for TFR maturing after 1 January 2007 1s treated as a defined contribution plan under both
options An amount of €14 milhon at 31 Decernber 2013 (2012 €18 mullton) has been recognized in the proviston for
pension habibties v accordance with this legislation, which 1s unfunded As part of the retirement benefit obhigation
the Group also reports a liability {"Cassa Vincolata Passiva") of €24 million at 31 December 2013 (2012 €26 muilion)
that represents the right of current employers of former CEVA employees to claim TFR payments Similarly, the Group
also has an asset ("Cassa Vincolata Attiva") of €1 miliion (2012 €2 million) that is included 1n non-current prepayments
This asset reflects the right of the Group to claim TFR payments for certain employees from their prior employers
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Movement in defined benefit abligations

£ miflrons

2013

Midanay
SEIVICE 0SS e e e e
Qther costs L e

lnterg_stcosts e e e e e i

Actuasial loss L i L
Exchange rate differences
Benefitspaid
Negative past

Settiements

vice cost

{16}
(2]

Transfers T T m e - - 1
At31 December 189 211

Movement in plan assets
€millions 2013 2012
N 9 84
CExpectedreturnonplanassets e e 3 4
3

Actuanal gain o e e e e e

_Exchange rate differences
LEmployercontnbution
Benefits paid
Settlements
Transfers

(2}
3)

(2)

10
(5)

At 31 December

103

EE]

Expense recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement

E€millions

2013

2012

Recognized:n personnel expenses note7)

Servicecosts o
Othercosts o e e e
Negatwvepastservicecosts”

Recogmizedn finance expense fnote®)
Expectedreturnonplanassets e _
IHEEEF costs

{16)

(3)

{#}

Employer penston income}/expense for the year

(%)

12

The gawn 15 related to negative past service cost of a defined benefit plan in Europe
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Amounts recogruzed in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

€millhions 2013 2052
Actuanal (garnsj/losses recogmz-eETrﬂ_g;tnatement ofother comprehensive |
_ncome tnthe period {before tax) (4) 24 |
Cumulatlve actuanal losses recognized the statement ofother corn_;_)_rghenswe
Income (before tax) 38 42
The actual return on plan assets was an €6 million gain (2012 €8 millon gain)
Principal actuarial assumptans
2013 2012
Discountrate T 37% 37%
Rate of compensationincrease 22% 2 2%
Inflation 18% 2 0%

Percentages indicated are weighted averages

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on actuanial advice in accordance with public statistics

and expenience in each territory Mortality assumptions for our most important funds are based on the following post-

retirement mortality tables

o United Kingdom for males the assumption 1s 98% of the SAPS Series 1 (“S1PA”) table with year of birth medium
cohort projections and floors subject to a mimimum annual rate of improvement of 1 5% and for females it 1s 100%
of the S1PA table with year of burth medium cohort projections subject to a minimum annual rate of improvement
of 1 0%

s The Netherlands age adjustment based on the £S-P2A table published by the Dutch Actuarial Society, the GBM/GBY
2012-2062 mortahty table

¢ United States RP2000 Combined Healthy tzble, Fully Generational

These tables translate into an average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65

2013 2012

e e e e R NE S Mo U

Retinngat the end ofthe reportmg RerIad
Male e e .. ..o328 216 195 224 215 1396
- __F_g_nja‘l_e________h_ e e e e e i 24 3_'“ 23 3 - g_}_?: 241 233 . _3}_4

Retiring20 years afterthe end ofthereportingperiod B e

Male " . - e _n_______‘________Z_S___Q_________Z’}_g__ N 21 0 —_— 25 3 o 23 3 ~ _g}_p A
Female 259 24 4 222 259 244 224

Other key assumptions inherent to the valuation of the Group’s pensions and the determination of our pension cost
include employee turnover, discount rates, expected long term returns on plan assets and future wage increases The
expected return on plan assets is determined by considening the expected returns available on assets underlying the
current investments policy These assumptions are given a weighted average and are based on independent actuarial
advice and are updated on an annual basis Actual circumstances may vary from these assumptions giving rise to

a different pension hability

Through tts defined benefit pension plans and post-employment medical plans, the group 1s exposed to a number of
nisks, the most significant of which are detailed below
o Asset volatiity, The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond

yields, if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit

o Inflation nsk, The main part of the Group’s pension obligations are linked to inflatron, and higher inflation will
lead to tugher llabihities The majority of the plan’s assets are either unaffected by or loosely correlated with
inflation, meaning that an increase in inflation will also increase the deficit

¢ Life expectancy, The majonity of the plans’ obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so
increases in life expectancy will result tn an increase in the plans’ izbilities

CEVA Group Plc - Annual Report 2613 60




The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions 1s

Change in Increase In Decrease in

— L . assumption assumption e __Egy_rl‘l_p_‘lﬂt_'l_

Discount rate—_ e 050% Decrease by7 2% Increase by 7 8%
Life expectancy lyear Increase by 4 3% Decrease by 4 3%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant In
practice, this s unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated When catculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuanal assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined henefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period} has
been applied as when calculating the pension liability recogmzed within the statement of financral position

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obhigation 15 15 4 years
Expected employer contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 December 2014 are
€1 mithon The expected employer contribution for the year ended 31 December 2014 15 lower compared to the actual

employer contribution for the year ended 2013 mainly due to a curtallment of the pension plan m Europe

Plan assets do not include any Investments in the Group and are comprised as follows

2013 203.x
Equty T T T 28% 30%
Fixedinterest 15% 34%
Realestate - I 0% 2%
Cash 2% 1%
Other 55% 33%
Total 100% 1009%
The experignce adjustment to the pension plans are as follows
€ millions 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
E-lﬁgggmberpresent vajue ofieiﬁ_qég—p_gaézoﬂg‘_ai[q;-:‘::_h_“ M189 B o211 _‘:_ _oamr _‘__-_—__Iid_::_- :_ ?3:_5:
Fairvglue ofplan assets 103 99 34 74 56
Deficitin the plan's funded status 86 112 93 30 74
Experience adjustment on plan hahihties (2} 2 I T {2} 14
Expertence adjustment on plan assets 3 3 5 1 4

23. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

CEVA Holdings LLC implemented a new share-based equity plan effective 11 June 2013 that replaces the stock-based
compensationissued from the CEVA Investments Limited 2006 Long Term incentive Plan which was terminated as part
of the Recapitalization

The new manzgement equity plan, comprising rights to receive shares in the Company and deferred cash
compensation, has been put in place In addition new option and share award plans have been implemented

CEVA Recap Equity-Based Compensation Plan

CEVA Holdings LEC implemented a new share-based compensation plan effective 11 lune 2013, referred to as “CEVA
Recap Equity-Based Compensation Plan” This new equity plan gives selected employees rights to recewve shares of the
Company free of charge at specified dates Such rights vest in three equal installments at the 3rd, 4th and 5th
anniversary
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CEVA Recap Cash-Based Compensation Plan
CEVA Holdings LLC implemented a new cash-based compensation plan effective 11 lune 2013, referred to as “CEVA
Recap Cash-Based Compensation Plan” This new deferred cash plan gives seiected employees nghts to receive cash
from Company at specified dates Such rights vest in three equal installments at the 3rd, 4th and 5th anniversary

CEVA New Optiocn Awaids

CEVA Holdings LLC implemented a new share-based optton plan eifective 11 June 2013, referred to as “CEVA New
Option Award plan” This new option plan gives selected employees rights to acquire shares of the Company at the fair
market value of the grant date provided specified vesting conditions are met Such nights partly vest over ttime and
partly when specified company metrics are met

New livestor Awaids

CEVA Holdings LLC implemented a new share-based investments plan effective 2 October 2013, referred to as “CEVA
New Investor Award plan” This new plan gives selected employees rights to purchase shares of the Company at far
market value of the award date

All performance based options and shares vest at change of a qualified change i contro! and are subsequently locked

for trading for a mynimum period of 180 days Change in control can be an acquisition of beneficial ownership of the
Group, merger, consclidation or recapitalization

The number and weighted average exercise price of share options are as follows

2013

Weighted average

Number exercise pricein €

Cumsdngat gy 7T T T o T e e
Sranteddunngthevear . ... . 2768 594 11
Forfelted T T R s T
Exercised - T T
Outstanding ot 31 December E I TR T

Exarcisable at the end of the year - - !

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 have a weighted average exercise price of €594,11 and a remarming
weighted average contractual life of 9 47 years As at 31 December 2013 a total of 4,455 restricted stock units were

outstanding

The fair value for services received in return for share options granted 1s based on the fair value of share options
granted The weighted average fair value of the share options granted during the peried determtned using the Black-
Scholes Merton valuation model was €405 43 per option The significant inputs into the model were a weighted
average share price of €725, exercise price as shown above, average volatility during the year of 42 77%, a weighted
average expected option life of & 99 years and a risk free interest rate of 1 51% based on the SEC rates on each grant
date 1n 2013 Expected volatlity 1s estimated by considering the historic average share price vatatility of our industry
peers

In the absence of a public market for common shares, the share price was determined by the Group based on a
number of valuation methods incorporating faciors and assumptions that the Group believes knowledgeable, willing

market participants would consider in setting the share price, including consideration of industry peers and other
quantitative and quaiitative factors

There are no expected dividends

Refer to note 7 “Personnel expenses” for the share option expense and the detalls of the optiens granted to directors
and executive management
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24, PROVISIONS

€ millions Legal claims Insurance  Restructunng Other Total
Banceatifanuan2013 e T Tse T "1 T e T T 128
Raisedduringthe year | — Y - S * SV AU SO .- 2
Utilizedduringtheyear  ~——— {3&) _{18) _ _ @1 . L2 D 1)
Reverseddunngthevear . _ . Qo __ . - . W . @O____ _£9
Exchange rate differences (1) - - - {1)
_Balance at 31 December2043 32 42 _....23 _ .2 a2z

Ofwhichnon-current 19 o . T 7 AT
Ofwhich current 11 26 21 8 b6

The economic outflow of non-current provisions 1s expected to occur within one to five years The impact of
discounting was not considered to be matenal

Legal claims
A number of legal claims are pending against the Group They consist of prowisians for claims related to labor and

employment matters, commercial arrangements, personal injury and property damage claims {including claims seeking

to hold us liable for accidents involving our independent owner-operators), tnternational trade, intellectual property,

environmental, health, and safety, tanff enforcement, property damage, subrogation claims and vartous other matters

arising from CEVA’s ordinary business activities

While the outcome of these disputes cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes that, based upon legal

adwvice and information received, the final decision will not matenally affect the consolidated positron of the Group To
the extent management has been able to reliably estimate the expected outcome of these claims, a provision has been
recorded as at 31 December 2013 Where the expected outcome cannot be reliably estimated disclosure of the matter

ts given in note 27 “Contingencies”

Insurance
The insurance provision includes amounts provided in respect of self insurance schemes which represent estimates,

based on historical experience, of the ultimate cost of setting outstanding claims and claims incurred but not reported

at the balance sheet date on risks retained by the Group

Restructuring
These provisions relate to various restructuring projects initiated as part of the Group’s cost containment programs

They include staff redundancy costs, and site closure costs
Other

Other provisions largely comprise provisions for dilapidations and dismantling costs, employee benefit obligations,
onerous contracts, tax and other related costs

25, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

£ millions 2013 2012
Teadepayabies | T TT T TT T T 678
Personnel related accruals e e _ 107 104
Social secuntyand othertaxes 72 80
Accrued habilities 362 504
Total trade and ather payables e e 1,178 1,366
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26. COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure for the acquisition of tangible and intangible fixed assets contracted for at the Balance Sheet date

but not yet incurred totals €17 mitlion {2012 €13 million)
Operating l[ease commitments

The Group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The lease terms
are generally between one and stx years and the majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the lease

penod at market rates

The Group also leases various motor vehicles, office and computer equipment under operating lease agreements

During the year ended 31 December 2013, €299 mitlion was recognized as an expense In the Consolidated Income
Statement in respect of operating leases (2012 €304 muflion)

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

€ millions 2013 2012
tessthanlyear _ T T 234 254
15years - e 517 510
Thereafter 7 T 196 299
"'[Q_ut‘a!k_“ T, = e 947 ,063
Of which guaranteed by third party /customaers 72 493

Of the future lease payments, €675 million {2012 €775 million) relates to commitments in relation to multl user/
shared facilities, while the remaining €272 million {2012 €288 million) s dedicated to specific customers

Guarantees
The Group hasissued guarantees on behalf of its subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business in connection with

lease agreements, customs duty deferment and local credit lines amounting to €276 million (2012 €263 million), of
which €117 million (2012 €119 million) was 1ssued but undrawn under our synthetic letter of credit faciity and €74
milhion (2012 €52 million) issued but undrawn under our revolving credit facihty The remaming amount urissued
under the synthetic letter of credit facility was €6 million (2012 €7 million) The obligaticns under the guarantees
issued by banks and other financial institutions have been secuied by CEVA and certain of its subsidiaries

27 CONTINGENCIES

Litigation and Legal Proceedings
The Company is involved in several legal proceedings relating to the normal conduct of our business Whilte the

outcome of these legal proceedings I1s uncertain, the Company believes that it has provided for all probable and
estimable labilities anising from the normal course of business, and we therefore do not expect any lability ansing
from any of these legal proceedings to have a material impact on our results of operations, iquidity, capital resources

or financral position

Surcharge Antitrust Investigation and Litigation

Several CEVA subsidiaries and certain current and former employees have been or are subject to, and cooperating
with, investigations by the European Commussion (“EC”) and the governments of Brazil and Singapore for passible
price-fixing and other improper collusive activity with respect to certain accessorial and other charges, along with
several other entities In the freight forwarding industry Several investigations {including by the U S Department of
Justice {"DOJ") and by authonities in Canada, Japan, New Zealand, and Switzerland) have been resolved

CEVA has also reached a settlement agreement with the plaintiffs in a putative class action lawsuit against EGL, Inc and

EGL Eagle Global Logistics, LP, styled Precision Associates, Inc, et al v Panalpina World Transport (Holding) Ltd, et al,
filed in the U S District Court for the Eastern District of New York On 23 September 2013, the court approved the
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settlement agreement and dismissed with prejudice the case against the EGL entities  All settlement funds have now
been paid

in February 2010, we received a statement of objections from the EC concerning our alleged participation in certain
price-fixing cartels in the air freight forwarding business m violation of the European Union artitrust rules We
submitted a response, and on 28 March 2012, the EC 1ssued its ruling The EC ruled that EGL, Inc and two of its
subsidiaries (now known as CEVA Freight (UK) Limited and CEVA Freight Shanghal Limited) had violated Eurcpean
Union competition law by participating in two infringements of competrtion law in relation to the pricing of two
discrete fees The EC imposed a total fine of approximately US54 million (€3 million) on EGL, Inc and its subsidranes,
which we have now paid, pending our zppeal, which has now been filed The Company cooperated with the EC
throughout its investigation and recewved substantial reductions in 1ts fines as a result

With regard to the Brazilian investigatron, on 6 August 2010, the Brazilian antitrust enforcement authorittes announced
an administrative proceeding against numerous freight forwarding companies, including CEVA Logistics Holdings B V
and CEVA Logistics Ltda , and against numerous individuals, including one current and one former employee of CEVA
Pursuant to the apphcable admimstrative process, we intend to submit a response At this time, the extent of the
potential claims identified by the Brazilian authorities that are being alleged as to the Company’s subsidiaries 1s not
clear Itis not possible to predict the timing or outcome of the investigation or the potential financial impact on the
Company, which couid involve the imposition of administrative or civil fines, penalties, damages or other sanctions that

could have a material adverse impact on the Company

The Competition Commission of Singapare (“CCS”) 1ssued a formal request for infarmation in November 2012 which
appears to be focused on the subject matters of the DOJ plea agreement, the New Zealand Commerce Commission
settlement, and the EC statement of objections We are cooperating with the CCS to provide requested information
We cannot determine the timing or outcome of the governmental investigations that remain pending These
investigations could result in the imposition of administrative or ewil sanctions, including fines, penalties, damages and
debarment from federal contracting in the U S or other sanctions which could have a matenial adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations, operating cash flows and business activities

We are also the subject of an investigation by the Itahan competition authority related to possible price-fixing and
other improper collustve activity with respect to international road freight forwarding to and from Itaty On 16 June
2011, we were notfied that the [talian competition authonty has found an infringement of Itzlian law and imposed
fines and penalties against a number of freight-forwarders, including a subsidiary of CEVA As a result of the fines being
imposed, we have previously recorded a provision in connection with this investigation, paid the fine, and appealed,
ourinitial appeal was rejected, but we have filed a further appeal Management believes the amounts in question are
not matenal to the financial performance of the Company

Independent Contractor-Related Proceedings
The classification of drivers as independent contractors—which we believe to be a common practice in our industry n

the U'S —is challenged from time to time by federal and state governmental and regulatory authorities, including tax
authonties, as well as by individual drivers who seek to have drivers reclassified as employees We are currently party
to a lawsuit styled Mohit Narayan, et al v EGL, Inc and CEVA Freight, LLC, in which the plaintiffs filed a putative class
aciton, seeking a declaratory judgment, restitution, damages and other relief The case Is currently en remand from the
Ninth Cireuit Court of Appeals to the federal district court in the Northern District of Califormia  In September 2012, the
district court denied the platntiffs’ request to certify the lawsuit as a class action  The plaintiffs asked the Ninth Circurt
Court of Appeals to review that ruling, but the court denied that request That means individual members of the
former putative class must pursue their own individual claims, which some are doing

In additton, 1in October 2009, the California Employment Development Department {(“EDD"), based on a worker
classification audit, determined that such individuals should be reclassified as employees for purposes of state
unemployment tax, employment traiming tax, disability insurance contributions, and personal income tax, and the EDD
issued a tax assessment We have petitioned the EDD to review 1ts assessment, with a potential for abating a majonty

of the assessed taxes

While we cannot provide assurances with respect to the outcome of these cases and it 15 possible that we could incur a
matenal loss in connection with any of these matters, we intend to vigorously defend ourselves in these proceedings
and do not at this time believe that a loss in these cases ts probable or reasonably estimable
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Tax Proceadings
We are involved in tax audits in various jurisdictions relating to the normal conduct of our business While the outcome

of these audits 1s uncertain, we believe that we have provided for ail probable and estimable tax liabilities arising from
its normal course of bustness, and we therefore do not expect any llability arnising from these audits fo have a material
impact on our results of operations, hiquidity, capital resources or financial position

Other Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in a variety of legal proceedings and disputes anising i the ordinary course of
business For example, we have been and currently are subject to numerous labour and employment proceedings and
disputes in both Italy and Brazil afleging various causes of action and raising other legal challenges to our [abour and
employment practices Such proceedings include individual claims and lawsuits, disputes with unions, ¢lass action
claims, and governmental or quasi-governmental imvestigations While the outcome of these legal proceedings 1s
uncertain and may rot be capable of estimation, we believe that resolution of these matters and the incurrence of
their related costs and expenses should not have a material adverse effect on our resuits of eperations, hquidity,
caprtal resources or financial position

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parent company
The immediate parent of CEVA Group Plc at 31 December 2013 was CEVA Holdings LLC, a company formed in the

Republic of the Marshall Islands The following table sets forth the shareholders of the CEVA Holding LLC as at 31
December 2013

2013

Number of shares beneficially owned
A-1preference shares A-2 preference Common shares Ownership
shares percentage?
Apollo 87,428 12,737 105,010 215%
Franklin 4,126 172,100 128,613 27 8%
CapRe 100,879 50,239 130,623 28 9%
Other! 45,211 99,752 78,860 21 8%
Total 237,644 334,828 443,106 100 0%

'None ofthe otherindividual shareho!ders own more than 5% of the shares in CEVA Holdings LLC
2 Assuming preference shares convertto commonshares

Frankhn Advisers, Inc and Franklin Templeton Investments Corp (together, "Franklin) are related parties by virtue of
the fact that they manage certain funds and accounts which together own 27 8% of the Company’s shares cutstanding
assuming all preferred shares are converted to common shares

Capital Research and Management Company ("CapRe"} 1s a related party by virtue of the fact that it manages certain
funds which together control 28 9% of CEVA Heldings LLC's shares outstanding assuming all preferred shares are
converted to common shares

Apollo 15 a related party by virtue of the fact that it manages certain funds which together own 21 5% of CEVA Holdings
LLC's shares outstanding assuming all preferred shares are canverted to common shares, possesses 50 1% of the
aggregate share votes and has the right to designate a majority of the Board of Managers of CEVA Holdings LLC

CEVA Holdings LLC owns 99 99% of the equity of CEVA Group Plc, 0 01% 1s held by CIL Limited {formerly CEVA
Investment Limited, the former parent of CEVA Group Plc}, and one share 1s held by Louis Cayman Second Holdco
Limited, a wholly owned substdiary of CIL Limited In addition, CIL Liruted holds 349,999 deferied shares and Louis
Cayiman Second Holdco Limited owns 1 deferred share {which has the nght to a return of capital upon a winding up
after the holders of ord:nary shares have receved the amount paid up on such ordinary shares plus a premium of
£10,000 per ordinary share)

An affiliate of CEVA Group Plc has a service agreement with Apollo for the provision of management and support
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services The annual fee 1s equal to the greater of €3 million per annum and 1 5% of the Group’s EBITDA Fees and
expenses of nil {2012 €4 million) are included in the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2013 because

these were waived by Apollo through the end of 2013

Marvin Schlanger, Michael Jupiter, Stan Parker, Tom White and Xavier Urbamn are Managers of CEVA Holdings LLC The
Managers of CEVA Holdings LLC are also the Directors of CEVA Group Plc Marvin Schlanger, Michae! Jupiter, Stan
Parker and Tom White alsa hold senior posttions at Apollo or Apollo portfolio companies CapRe and Franklin jointly
appomted Alan Miller, Emanuel Pearlman, John Smith and Thomas Staltkamp as Managers of CEVA Holdings LLC and

Directors of CEVA Group Plc

At 31 December 2013 CEVA Group Plc has booked a payable, which s disputed by CEVA Group Plc both as to validity
and amount, to CIL Limited, amounting to €13 milion (31 December 2012 €14 million} This relates to intercompany
cash pooling arrangements and is included within trade and other payables in the Consolidated Balance Sheet CiL
Limrted was the former parent company of CEVA Group Plc and has been placed in hquidation as part of the
Recapitalization CIL Limited 1s involved in an official iquidation proceeding in the Republic of the Cayman Islands and a
Chapter 7 proceading in the Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York Third party holders of PIK notes
with a face amount of €105 million in CiL Limited were offered an exchange for common shares of the Company as part

of the Recapitalization

CEVA has agread to indemnify Marvin Schlanger, Stan Parker, Tom White and Michael Jupiter, as well as Frankhn and
CapRe, for losses relating to the services contemplated by the management agreement with Apollo

Trading transactions
During the year, Group entities entered into the following trading transactions with related parties that are not

members of the Group

€ millions 2013 201z

Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

owed by owed to owed by owed to

Salesof Purchases related related Sales of Purchases related related

goods of goods parties parties goods of goods parties parties

P R R T T Y T T
Financing

From time to time, depending upon market, pricing and other condrtions, as well as our cash balances and liquidity, we
or our affiliates, including Apollo, Franklin and/or CapRe, may seek to acquire or sell notes or other indebtedness of
CEVA through open market purchases or sales, privately negotiated transactions, tender offers, redemption or
otherwise, upon such terms and at such prices as we or our affiliates may determine (or as may be provided for in the
indentures or other documents governing the notes or other indebiedness), for cash or other consideration In
addition, we have considered and will continue to evaluate potential transactions to reduce our outstanding debt (such
as debt for debt exchanges and other similar transactions), to extend our debt matunities or enter into alternative
financing arrangements, as well as potenttal transactions pursuant to which third parties, inciuding our affilates may
provide financing to CEVA or otherwise engage tn transactions to provide hquidity to CEVA There can be no assurance
as to which, if any, of these alternatives or combinations thereof we or our affiliates may choose to pursue i the
future as the pursuit of any alternative will depend upon numerous factors such as market conditions, our financial
performance and the limitations applicable to such transactions under our financing documents

At 31 December 2013 funds managed by Capital Research and Management Company ("CapRe"} held £21 mullion par
value of CEVA's 8 375% notes due 2017 and €38 million par value of CEVA's 11 625% notes due 2016

At 31 December 2012 CapRe held €70 million par value of CEVA's 11 5% notes due 2018 and €180 million par value of
CEVA's 12 75% notes due 2020 which were all 1educed to mil through participation in the Recapitalization

At 31 March 2014, funds and accounts managed hy Franklin Advisers, Inc and Frankhin Templeton Investment
Corporation held approximately (1) US$209 3 mullion of CEVA's 4% First Lien Senior Secured Notes due 2018, (1)
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Uss27 1 milion of CEVA's Tranche B Pre-Funded Letter of Credit, (ni) US520 millien of CEVA’s 7% First Lien Senior
Secured Notes due 2021, {iv) US525 million of CEVA's 9% Senior Secured Notes due to 2021, (v} U528 € million of
CEVA’s 6 50% Dutch BV Term Loan, (v} $4 & mullion of CEVA’s 6 50% Canadian Term Loan, and (vi) US $39 4 million of

CEVA’s 6 50% US Term Loan

At 31 December 2013 funds managed by Apollo held none of 11 5% junror prionty senior secured notes due 2018 (31
December 2012 US526 nuliion), none of the senior unsecured loan facility due 2018 (31 December 2012 US5113
million) and nene of the 12 75% senior notes due 2020 (31 December 2012 U55132 million) These holdings were all

reduced to nil through participation in the Recapitalization

A 10% PIK note, due May 2023 1s included in the total amount listed for loan notes, which compnises a principle of USS
723,572,788, interest of USS$ 12,055,556 and a fair value {excluding accrued interest} of USS 666,298,625

Ultimate controlling party
The ultimate controliing party of the Company 1s Apollo 1n accordance with the terms of the LLC Agreement

Other related party transactions
Remuneration of key management, being the Managers and executive management 1s disclosed in note 7 A new

management equity plan comprising rights to recerve shares in the Company and deferred cash compensation has
been put in place which replaced the previous plan that was administered by CH. Limited and cancelled as part of the
Recapitalization In addition new option and share award plans have been implemented (see note 23)

29 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

CEQ transitron
Marvin O Schlanger retired as CEO effective 2 January 2014 and is succeeded by Xavier Urbain as from that date Mr

Urbain has had a long and outstanding career in the Suppiy Chain industry serving on the Management Board and
Board of Directors and in several senior executive positions within muftinational companies Mr Urbain has been
elected a member of the Board of Managers of CEVA Holdings LLC and the Board of Directors of CEVA Group Ple,
effective January 21, 2014, and will be located at the company’s global head office in Hoofddorp, the Netherlands Mr
Schlanger will resume his position as non-executive Chairman of the Beard, a role he first undertook 1in 2009

March 2014 1efinancing
On 19 March 2014 the Company announced that it successfully completed 2 seres of debt refinancing transactions

Through these transactions, CEVA further increased caprtal available to fund growth initiatives and established a long-
term capital structure with 2 weighted average maturity of 2020

As part of the debt refinancing, CEVA (1) amended and restated its senior secured credit faciliies, which included
extending maturities and increasing the size of the factlities to an $809 million incremental term loan faciirty (maturing
in 2021}, a 5250 million revelving credit facihity {maturing in 2019) and a $275 million letter of credit facility (maturing
in 2021}, () privately 1ssued $300 million of 7 0% First Lien Senior Secured Notes due 2021 and () privately 1ssued
5325 million of 9 0% Senior Secured Notes due 2021

CEVA used the proceeds from the new notes and the incrermental term loan to (1} fund the early settiement of cash
tender offers and consent solicitations for its 8 375% Senior Secured Notes due 2017 (the “8 375% Notes”}, 11 625%
Senior Secured Notes due 2016 (the “11 625% Notes”) and 11 5% Junior Priority Semor Secured Notes due 2018 (the
“Unsecured Nates” and, together with the 8 375% Notes and the 11 625% Notes, the “Notes”}, in which $508,445,000
of 8 375% Notes (or approximately 90 4%}, $208,050,000 of 11 625% Notes (or approximately 99 1%), and $12,190,001
of Unsecured Notes (or 100%), were tendered for respective total consideration of $1,067 50, $1,064 50 and

$1,063 75, 1n each case, per $1,000 principal amount of notes tendered plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest
up to, but not ncluding, 19 March 2014, (n) fund the redemption and discharge of all of the remaining untendered

8 375% Notes at 106 281% of pnincapal amount and all of the remaining untendered 11 625% Notes at105 813% of
principal amount, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest to the applicable redempticn date, and (in) fund the
redemptiton and discharge of all of its outstanding 12% Second-Prionty Senior Secured Notes due 2014 at a redemption
price of 100% of principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date
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30 GROUP ENTITIES

The Group’s subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and mvestments as at 31 Becember 2013 are included in the table
below All entities other than holding companies are primarily involved in the provision of Freight Management and
Contract Logistics services

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation If the proportion of the voting rights i the subsidiary
undertakings held directly by the Group differs from the proportion of ordinary shares held, the former 1s disclosed in
brackets in the tahle below

Holdingiflessthan

Countryefincorporation Entity 100%
Algenia CEVA Logistics Algerie EURL L i B L

An‘g;I-;_ T CEVA Logistics {Angola) - Trdnsitanios @ Agentes de Na lavega E—a_a,_Lda T ..,.—
R}é;r_lz; -0 CEVA Logistics Argentina S A o . _:__:::-;_H:i;:w ; .._::wj;;..,.

Circle International Argentina S A
Eagle Global Logistics de Argentina SR L

Australia * CEVA Frelght (Australra) Pty lelted
_CEVA Fre:ght Receiva bles - Trust

v CEVA Loglstlcs {Australia) Pty Umlted

CEVA Logistics. Recewa bles Trust

* CEVA Materra[s Handlmg Pty Limited

CEVA Recelvables (Austraha) Pty | lented

» CEVA Pty Lumited

Austria AS S logistik Schrader Schachinger GmbH 50%
T WHX"SS Logistik Schrader Schachinger GmbH & Co KG 50%
CEVA Freight Austria GmbH
MEEVA Logistics Austria GmbH

CEVA Logistics Central and Eastern E_u-rope GmbH (1n liquidation)

Bahrain EGLEagle Global Logistics {Bahrain) W L L B
Belgum  CEVADENILogistics NV B T T Tooo%(s1%)
T T T AT CEVAFreight Belgium NV o o T o
T T CEVA Ground Europe_BT/-é-.“A B o T
oo I CEVA logistics Belglum NV T T e
T T Edoserve (Econamrc Interest Group) Tt o oo ““63079}:‘
T T —E(-S.L_(Belglum) Holding Company BVBA_ oo T e e
T/ e/ Invictus Boom NV T -__0_0_1‘}—6
- T SODIAC {Economue Interest Gr;u—p)——'— oo T T e mﬁ‘
—!;e_an—u—Ea T -WFACEI'Insurancele{ted e e e e _.”M“ o
T T T T T heggatoldings,id e T T
Er;z—ﬁ T T AV Manufacturmg Inc;ustrla e Cl;TTIEI'CIO de Pegas e Acessérlos Eit_(;m‘c;t—l—\.'—o‘s_’l:&i;m_ T T
T T TR _-E:;E\:'A Freight Management do BraSII Ltda e T e e e o
""" T T T kvaneldings wds T T T e mmmmmm
R =YY Logsstics Ltda T
H-::ﬁm‘” W: T o _E:_r[f_le Fretes Internationais do Brasi| Ltda h T o _"::'_
British Virgin [sl (BVI} CEVA Central America Holding Limited
) CEV_ﬁ_._Ehlna Holdlnngmited - ) L _ T T
canada  *  CEVAFreghtCanadaCorp T T o
- * CEVA logistics Canada, ULC o T
a_\,';a;\lslands * CEVA Logistics C;y;an M; _ T - i ______-: o o
TN CEVA Logistics Seco_;crée;'man o o o T

* Denotes a guarantor entity
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Holdng :fless than

Country afincorparation Entity 100%

Chite CEVA Freight Ma nagement logistica de Chrle Ltda ) 99 99%
o T Circle international Chile$ A i T ) ﬂ-wm-égi 999&?00%)

T oo o EI-;!E Outsourc:;g-;;;wces S.A - o .

China T - CEVAAutomotive logistics Companymited " T 6000%

_ CEVA Freight (Shenzhen) Lemited o )
CEVA Frerght International {Shanghai) Company er:ted )
CEVA freight Shanghar Limited )

- CEVA Loglstlcs Compa ny lelted"Sha;gE;wwm»wm‘ T T

CEVA Logistics Internatmnal Trading (Sha nghai) Company Lmited

Chongging Anji - CEVA Hongyan Automotive togistics Company binuted . 30 00%
:.-” ‘___ T ———..Fa;g_s_tj An_jl CEVA Logistics Company Limited o e ‘ ) o ﬁwég:/:
Comommm e brao Ning A-Lean Autor;;t;\:'-e Logistics Comp_a-nv meedﬂ_-_ﬂ T _ W-MWZE;:
T T - Shanghal Anji - Suchi Warehousing and Transpertation Company Limited T ——35—00%
___________ - Shanghal Anji - Tonghm Automotive Logistics Company Limited Tt o 269;
T Yizhen SAIC C Logistecs Company Limited B _ - T “mm““—B‘S——O;n
Colombia _ Agencia deAduanas CEVAlogisties SAS Nwvel2 T
T -M“j i CEVA—E;rg_rma—r;a—g_e};}—ént de Colombia SAS - T T T
Congo Republ 1c of ) CEVA Logistics Congo S A {tn liquidation) 70 00‘3.4
Costa Rica T CEVA FrexghtManaé;r;entCosta Riea, S deRL . T _-—_—30%(50—9_63
—C.Zl’;;l_ﬁg_-n_l?bl_l_c‘: T T CEVA Freight Czech Rggui)hc sro ’ T o e
e CEVA togistics spol sr ;_::H' o T - .m.,-,,_ T T ’ - ~
& Salvador T TTCevAFreght Management Bl Salvador, tda decv T T
Fnland | CEvALogistics FslandOy T T T T
Fra-r;c: T T CEVA Frmght Ho[drngs France SAS*“M T m“—“—-”—:—:_—"-_—‘_-“:::_:::_ :_-_

CEVA Freight Management France SAS
CEVA Logistics France SAS
Germany * CEVA Freight (Management) GmbH
T M LEE\_'_A_Frmght Germa}—yTGth
* B EE;JA Logistics GmbH

DIHS-DAKOSY Interessengemeinschaft Ha mburger Spediteure GmbH 385%

* Exporta Gesetlschaft fur Exportberatung mbH

__ Interessengemel nschaft Datenbank Spedition GbR 7 66%

Kombiverkehr Deutsche Gesellschaft fur kombxm erten Guterverkehr th & Co KG 021%

TRANSCONTAINER-UNIVERSAL GmbH & Co KG 083%
Greece CEVA Loglshcs Hellas SA

Guatemala CEVA Frelght Ma nagement Guatemala, Ltda

Hong Kong i _* CEVA FM (Hong Kong} Limeted
. CEVA Frerght Hong Kong bimited
* CEVA Logistics [Hong Kong) Limited

* Pyramid Lines Limrted

* Freight Systems Limited
* Ozonic Limited
_I-_h;\g_a;; T T CEVA Contract Laggtlcs Kt
o CEVA Logrstics Hungary Kft
-l_ndTaM T CEVA Freight (India) Private Umited
:____ o L CEVA Logistics India Private Limited

Indonesia PT CEVA Freight Indonesia 95 00%

PT CEVA Logistik Indonesia

PT Hartapersada Interfragh; 95 00%

* Denotes a guarantor entity
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Country ofincorporation

Hotding if lessthan

Entity 100%

Ireland

AVEC International Services Lmited

AVEC Logistics (Ireland) Limited

CEVA Freight italy Sl
CEVA Logistics Hoiding ltaly Sp A

CEVA Logistics ltalia Sl

CEVA Logistics International [taliaSrt

) i o DIMAF Pharma Supply ChainSr ) o - T
SITTAM Spedizioni Internazionall Trasportt Terrestrr Aerel Marittim Sl

CEVAlogistics Japaninc

CEVA Logistics Jordan Limited 5000%

Jor:ia—;l )

Kazakhstan

CEVA Logistics Kazakhstan LLP T e T

Korea

CEVA Logistics Korea, Inc

Lu;embozl-ré * i CEVA Freight Holdings LuxembourgSar|
CEVA Freight Luxembourg Sarl

50% (100%)

Malaysia

CEVA Freight (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

CEVA Freight Holdings (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd

cTT T CEVA Logistics (Malaysta) Sdn 8hd - T T
oo Milage sﬁfﬁrﬁm T T h o
CooTT Tt T Regga (Malaysla) sdn Bhd oo T - o e
T . Unipearl Corperation Sdn_Bhd . T . Tt T T/
nl\;lex:o_ T d_HCE\i'@freaght Management Mexico §A de cv. ) 0 00;:(-{06;6)_
- S ”_‘ _C:EVALEJg:stlcadeMwuc-é:_SAde_CV --------- - o TToTmTm T
T ) CéVA Servicios de Ma:co,_s—i-ic v ST
Netherla;a_d; . CEVA Coop Holdco B V o 0 T/ 0 m e
T * CEVA Freight Holdings BV i o T e T
T * CEVA Freight Holland B V T e e e e
T T CEVA India Holding BV o _ ) T T
I CEVAInterco_r;npany ev. N o -
T T T T CEVA LOngtICS_Dl-J(Ch Holdco“B-Vn a :_ - .__.._:M..._ e e
T T . CEVA Logistics Finance BV o /s
T T CEVA Logistics Headoffice BVN- Trhommm mmem s m e T
T e “CEVA Logistics Holdings B V e _:__"__ :_ _ ____::

*

CEVA Logistics Netherfands B V

Cooperatieve CEVA/EGLI BA

Cooperatieve CEVA/EGLII BA

New Zealand

CEVA Logistics (New Zealand) Lirmited

Nigeria

CEVA Fresght Management Nigeria Limited

Northern reland

CEVA Logistics Nl Lmited

Norway

CEVA Logistics Norway AS

Oman CEVA Logsstics LLC i o 65 00%
Panama CEVA Centram S deRL

CEVA Freight Management Panama S deR L 55 00%

EGLColombia Holding, S de R L. T

CEVA Logistics PeruSRL

CEVA Peru Aduanas SAC 39%

EGL Agencia de Aduanas S.A.C 100%

* Denates a guarantorentity
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- Holding:f less than
Country ofincorporation Entity 100%
Phlllppmes CEVA Holdings (Philippines), Inc L 60%

CEVA Logistics {SUBIC), Inc
CEVA Logistics Phihppines lnc
CEVA Wa rehousmg and Dlstributlon Inc

Regga Transport Contractnrs Inc

Regga Wa rehousmg & Bistribution, Inc

Poland CEVA Logistics Peland Sp zo 0
CEVA Freight {Poland}Sp z00
Portugal CEVA Logistics (Partugal) - Logistica Empresar:al Lda

Puerto Rico CEVA Logistics Puerto Rico, Inc

Qatar CEVA Logistics {Qatar)w LL 49%

Roma na CEVA Logistics SR L.

Saudn Arab:a CEVA international Al-Suwaiket Company Limited 45%

Slngapore CEVA Asia Pacific Holdings Company Pte Ltd

T T T CEVA FM (Southeast Asia) Pte Ltd ] e
Tt m o CEVA L;élstlcs Slngaporg;te Ltd o e L -1 . LWMH;_*W
ST T T T T CeVA Logistics Asia Pte Ltd -

Tt T CEVA Supply Chain Smga::-c‘n:-e*l;e Ltd T T T )
Slovakia___ CEVAlogstesSlovakm,sro T T T
SouthAfrica _ CEVAlogrstics South Africa (Proprietaryumited T
- TNT Container Loglstn:s (Proprletary) Um:tecfm”_m ST m__‘ _::-:—‘ o “;ﬁ .
spain CEVAFreight (Espania),s LU T B )
T T CEVA Logistics E;E;ﬁa, SLy T T ’»‘___" :— _*__ B _ E_jg __—_
T T CEVA Production Logistics EspaF;;,S LU R :--. T —.._ X T T
Swekd*ea'p Tt CEVA Logistics {Sweden)XB T T T o ‘__ ~ _~ _‘ -_ : ~__:__-_ N
_S_V;Eze_rl;na_ CEVA Logistics Switzerland GmbH T T -
Tt CEVA Manggement GmbH T T T T T
_Te;rwawnw T T E}E\;KrogTstlcs {Taiwan) Company Limited o —: ) ”_ ~_:_ ______—-_- ____:__ :___:_“_-__ -:—h
T T Concord Express (Tahrw;;JCcmpanv_Ll__rrﬂt_eE‘_; waﬁ_ﬁj i . e _—_:—_:

Thau!and CEVA Freight (Thalland) Limited

CEVA Logistics {Thailand) Limited
CEVA Vehicle Loglstlcs {Thailand) Limited 100%

T —CV—VEIlelted o - o a9%

Tunisia CEVA Logistics TumissaSarl

Turkey T CEVA Lojisttk Limited §|rk§t1 —_ B o o o L
CEVA Uluslararast Tasimaciitk Linited Slrketl

United Arab Ermirates CEVA Arabia Heavy Trans ansport {LLc ) 49%

CEVA International FrEIght LLC 49%
CEVA Logistics (UAE}LLC 49%
CEVA Logisties FZCO ST
o Circle Internaticnal LLC 49%

*Denates a guarantorentity
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- Holdsing if less than
Countryofincarporation Entity 100%
United Kingdam **  CEVA Automotive Logisuics UK bimited

T T Waacdliecons e T T o
* *t  CEVA Container Logistics Limited
T T W evapismbutonbemted B e
o T W Tteva Frelght(UK) HB]&TF\éEt;;’lBany L:mited i o o TmTmTmmr e
T T T TR TTCEVA Freight {UK) Holdings Limited T - T
TR CEVA Freight (UK) Limited T - T T
o T * CEVAGroup Plc o o T T 99 09%
T T T T ceAumited T T T
i _:“ T e CEVA Logistics !]mlted T —_-*._.- h e A:::‘“
) ) :__ ..____:._H_ CEvA Netw;rk Logistics Umlted L L N o
T T CEVA Showfreight lel_ted T : e 'm:::-__*_’_"_____ L

e CEVA Supply Chain Sotutions Limited

T * Eagle Global I.ogrstlcs (UK) llmlted—ﬁ ‘_t
) o w*'"_—l_:]_'l:\,;herlelgh & Co lelted o R
T T TTTTlusNe 2lmited T e T
T o Newsagents WhOT&_S-; |’E Corp Limited T - - —:;—- T _;— _____
ToTTmm Newsfast Limuted B B T ot T
T T T Paintblend Lmuted mmmmmeem e e —:_ ‘: - ___ T
T - Paintblend 2 Lirmited . ___- ::_m T, T _’":“
UnitedStates | Ashtonleasmg lmited " "~ o T 4900%
2 CEVA Fre|ght Managementlnternatﬁl Group, In_c o T
T T CeVAFreight, LLC T T o
CTTT T _CEVA Governn?entSerwces, L e e “_-_ T _:—— o
”——__«.—-_--‘_—*-—“EVAGroundUS,LP oo —;_m-—w—_ﬁ-ﬁ Com e e T
T :-_—CEVAinternatlonaI inc Ty e e e _—-:: o
T ) * CEVA Logistics, LIC e oTre T Ty e o
o ;'"‘““ CEVA LOgIStICS Japan LLC oo ormrmmr e e m m
T T ”“* o CEVA LOgIStICS Services US ' Inc D T T T —————__~-_:
T e CEVALOEI;ET:S us Group,ln_c-- --—--——--—--‘- T A—-ﬂ T T
T * ‘?E\_';A—Logxstlcs US Holdings, inc T T T
T T —*_ ----EE;/ALOEISUCS US nc o T/ T
T + CEvAOceanUne, Inc T T R
T ""-_;__- "EE\;;?;ade Sel’VICES Inﬁc o T T o e
T T EEVA US Recervables, LLC T M_——-— v« e e
T ’* - *C—l-rcleIntemaaur;amsl‘arn-g;dgn TorTmEr T om o T
T .‘;"’- _EompllanceScwurce LLC T . B :_ T
T * Customized Transportatmn International, In: T _ i T
o TTmrTTTT T Fagle Partners LP - T T e o
T Eagle USA Import Brokers, Inc o T T T
CrTmmmmmmmT A T EGL, Inc T T e e T T T
* EGL Eagle Global Logistics, LP T T
oo R Se[ec{Ea~r:|er Group LLC - o T o e
_l—Jr_t;éJa—?::_____ -—____ “E. rcle Interﬂ_aﬁonal Latin America Holdings S A - T __—__% ...W._._-___...H___:

Gadupal SA )
Vietnam CEVA Logistics (Vietnam) Co Limuted 5100%

* Denotes a guarantor entity

** Entity opted for statutory audit exemption under s479a ofthe UK Companies Act 2006
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31 GUARANTOR/ NON-GUARANTOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In December 2008, July and Qctober 2009, March and December 2010, CEVA Group Plc raised funds through offerings
of securities which were admitted io trading on the Global Exchange Market of the Insh Stock Exchange {“ISE’) The
guarantors of these notes also guarantee our senior secured facilities on a sentor secured basis {secured on pari passu
basis with the guarantees of the fust lien senior secured notes), the lien-and-a-half prionity senior secured notes
(secured on a basis junior to the guarantee of the first hen semor secured notes and the senior secured facilities), the
junior priorty senior secured notes {secured on a basis jurior to the guarantees of the first hen senior secured notes,
the senior secured facilities and the hen-and-a-ha!f priority senior secured notes), the rematning amount of the 12%
notes due 2014, the senior unsecured [oan facility and the serior notes (Incfuding the senior notes held by affiliates of
Apolio with an extended maturity) on & senior basis and the sentor subordinated notes (includmg the senior
subordinated notes held by affiliates of Apollo with an extended maturity) en a senior subordinated basis

The subsidiarias who are ‘guarantors’ are indicated in note 30 “Group entities” All other subsidiaries are the “non-

guarantors’

When guarantees are provided for debt that is listed on the ISE, the ISE requires financial information relating to each
group to be separately presented in a note to the consolidated financial statements, presenting, in separate columns,
the Guarantors (on a combined basis) and the non-guarantors {on a combined basis), with an additionaf calurmn
reflecting elirminating adjustments, If matenial This information s disclosed in the tables below as at 31 Decermber
2013, prior to the Recapitalization as described in note 29 “Events after balance sheet date”

YEARENDED 31 DECEMVBER
€ mtllions 2013
Non-

Guarantar guaranter Eliminations Conscolidated

Revenue T T Taess. |z (s9) | __6A1S
Wotkcomragtedout T T T T g ese 27 (3]
Personnel expanses e e e e {L,217)  _ (8%3) . -_ (1,870}
Other operating expenses (686} (441) 32 (1,095)
Operatingexpenses excludingdepreciation, amortization and impaiment  (3,517) (2,748} 59 (6,206)
Adustedtamoa U T T T e se - 208
Speaficrems B o) 1)
DA T e s - 186
“Gapreration, smartzavon and mpament . R T S T )
Operatinglncome T T @ o .3
‘Net ﬁnanc:expense {including foreign exchange ;na;ements) hj-_F T (£33) “__(iZL _— : :;m-_:.:‘::ﬁ___(-]-_._‘f__i:)
_Profit/{loss} beforaincometaxes t: —_ ‘iﬂfurﬂ_m; N 'j'(ﬁi')_ll_"__”ﬁﬁf'"f:_"jf_-“_::'_'t_"lj;z‘_i
Income tax expenS'e - B T T 75)_—‘_ T - g
lossfortheyear e 27D Be) . _ oo _l163)
Atrbwablero T
Non-controllingmterest e - o 3 - - 3
Equity holders ofthe Company {127) {39} - {166)
lossforthe year (127) @) - T T(163)
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

£ millions 2012
Non

Guarantor guarantor Ehminations Consolidated

Ravenue ],31_!7 2,847 (70) 7,224

2.072) {1,662) 23 (3.711)
{1,352) (684) - (2,036)

Personnet expenses

Other operating expenses (762) {511) 47 (1,226)
Operztingexpensese cluding deprectation, amortization and impairment {4,186} {2,857) 70 {6,973)

_EélTlSA’b:fore specific 1ten_'|; 161 <0 - 251

Speaficitems (51} (27) - (78)
U T = H A

Depreciation, amortization and impairment, SO - N .1 &

Operating Incoma {198) {123) - (32%)

‘Ngj_f[[l_a_rlge_gﬁr_)g_n_se_(lﬂc’ludlné foreign exchange movem-ents) (3}-4) (34) {348)
Profit {after tax) from investments in asscciates 12 (12) - -

Pﬁgﬁﬂioss] .befnre Incoma ta es {sog) {16¢) [659)

Income tax expense - {12) (12)
(S0} {181) - . fe8t)

tossforthe year

mwbwmbieto e e ol
Moncontrollinginterest e e e A A

Equity holders afthe Company {500) {185} - (685)

Loss for the year [500) (181} [681])
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2013

€ millions

Guarantor Non-guarantor  Eliminations  Consohdated

ASSETS . e e i
Non-current assets e
Intangbleassets .. ... ...84 . 438 - __ 1378

Property, plantand equipment - SRR - S . D L

Investment in asscciates _ . I3 ——— ———— [N

Deferredincome taxassets "—___“ e oy 8 &

Amounts recervable from other CEVAcomparwes 1o 7 _any o

Prepayments . 13 L8 A
[ - 13

Other non-current assets 7
Totalnon-currentassets ) 6,403

Current assets - e — -

faventory o
Trade and other receivables . .. B9 3005 . G70)_____
Prepaymemi -
Accrued income e 63 BO & A52
Income taxrecevable 1 T tli_..B

Derwative financial instruments
Cashandcashequwslents _1s0 @l - . M6
Assets held for sale - 1 - 1

.Total current assets —....%8s____ 1340 781) _ _ L564

TOTAL ASSETS 7,388 "2,278 (6,463} 3,203

931 " (5,594) T (234

TotarGroup eguity 4,429

wamwmes L
Non-current liabihities e
Borrowings o e iee . W81 227 (158) 1,884

Deferredincome taxhabiiges 29 23y 20 .25
Retirement benefit obligations 35 60O @& _ 87
Prowsions ...
Other non-current habtlities 10
Jotalnon-current habilities s 2

Curcenthabiities ... o S
Borowmgs T 18 s - 16

Provisions 46 _ _

Tradeand othe?[;;yables L 901 __Loeo __-:E_g.?'_) ——— Ll_‘}ls___.

Income tax payable T rrmmemm m o mmm 10 {8) - 2
Total current liabilitries 1,033 3,082 0 {723) 1,362

TOTAL ECiGi'I"YMAND LIABILI'I:[—E_; 7,388 2,278 ﬁ(6,463) 3,203
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER

€ milhons

2012

Guarantor Non-guarantor

Eltminations Consolidated

ASSETS e e e e i

Non-currant assets
Intangible assets - 909
Property, plantand equipment 146
investment Inassociates . 4,790

- T 256

o (5,187 L -

Deferred incarmne taxassets 34 ... .28

182 -

Amounts receivable from other CEVAC_E).F;‘IP—;.I'EI—E?;- T m_'_:__f:ﬁ_j_— '__1§_6___
PrepaYmENLS e s e v o e 12

Othernon-current assets 5

. (58} &

- 35

- 17

_Ig_til non-currant assets . _._bpe2 .

_CHrrent asse_tg
Inventory __ 10

Trade sndgihei ievavies res

Prepayments e e e e o - 32
Accrued income e e 9

Incometaxrecewvable ..
Cash and cash equivalents . 65

Assets held for sale 125

Ly7s

N (5,405)____ .

1835

152

. 15
(881) 1,087
- “46

25 214

; 7

. 257

- 125

Jotalcunentassets - - e e o o a097

2OTAL ASSETS 7,159

510

2,658

_856) 31,751

6,261} 3,586

EQUITY B
Tolal Group equily 3,246

1,140

{5,158] (813)

uABmEs T T T Ll

Hon-current habiiities
Borrowings B
Deferred ncome taxhiabilizes . 86

Retirementbenefitebligavions  ____ __ _____ .58

2485

s
40

56

T

11

Frowsons 49

Other non-curre_rﬂ habihities 24

6

2563
6t

208

AU

- 60

- 30

_sotel non-curvent hahities 2,682

Current lizblittes
:@owlngs 77
Prowsions 42
Trade and otherpaysbles . 1097
Income tax payable o _5

Liahihitees held for sale 10

397

48
23
1,080

{251) 2,828

- 125

- 65
(811) 1,366
- 5

- 10

Totsl cureent habilities 1,231

;OTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,159

1,151

2,688

(811} 1,571

{6,261} 3,586
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CEVA GROUP PLC

REPORT ON THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OUR OPINICN
In our opinion the financial statements, defined below

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of 1ts loss and cash
flows for the year then ended,

« have been properly prepared in accordance with Internattonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted hy the European Urion, and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006 and Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation

This optnion s to be read in the context of what we say In the remainder of this report

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED
The group financial statements {the “financial statements”}, which are prepared by CEVA Group Ple, compnise

« the Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2013,

s the Consolidated income statement and Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended,

+ the Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
s the Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by
the European Urion

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for
example In respect of significant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and
considered future events

WHAT AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVOLVES

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UX and Ireland) {“ISAs {UX &
Ireland)”} An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matena! misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

s whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances and have been consistently
appled and adequately disclosed,

s the reasonableness of signsficant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
» the overali presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to 1dentify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit
If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
repart
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OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 -

In aur opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared Is consistent with the financial statements

OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

ADEQUACY OF INFORMATION AND EXPLANATIONS RECEIVED

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, m our opinion, we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinton, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibihity

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

OUR RESPONSIBILITIES AND THOSE OF THE DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page [17], the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Qur responsibibity 1s to audit and express an opinian on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the oprmions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving these
opintons, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or
into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of CEVA Group Pic for the year ended 31
December 2013

O L

Graham McGregor (Sentor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

30 April 2014

(a) The maintenance and integnity of the CEVA Group Plc website 1s the responsibility of the directors, the work
carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditars
accept no respensibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were
inttrally presented on the website

{b) Legslation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

ASAT31 DECEMBER

€milhions Note 2013 2012
Feedasets” .

Investments insubsidiary undestakings ’ 817 306
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 1,908 2,437
Total fixedassets e 2,725 2,743
—&urre ntassets . T ,_,,.’ H__ﬁ - e s

Amounts owedbysubsidiaryundertakings L . 209 61
Income tax receivable 3 22
JTotalcurrentassets o e e 212 G2
Creditars-amounts fallingdue withmoneyear "

Amounts owedto subsidiaryundertakings o N 1 164
Accruedand othercurrent habihtres 25 54
Total . . } e 26 218
Neteurrent assets/habities)  ___ T T T 186 535)
Total awataiesscament habiibes T T = 2,911 2,608
Creditors - amounts falling due after more than one year

BOrOWINGS e ————_— 1,317 1,790
Dtheraencurrent liabilities S U - >
Net assets 1,524 813
Copitalandraserves ~ T 5

Calledupsharecapital . _ . . __ .. _.__._. 1 1
Share preruumaccount . . L L - 382 382
Otherreserves .. L Ll e s 1,256 522
Profit and loss reserve {45) (92}
Total equity shareholders' funds 1,594 813

The financial statements on pages 80 to 83 were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2014 and were signed

on its behalf by

Marvin O Schlanger .

Brrector
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The princtpal accounting policies of CEVA Group Plc (the Company) are set out below These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented

11 Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention as modified by

the revaluation of certain financial assets and hatulities at fair velue in accordance with the Compantes Act 2006 and
applicable United Kingdom accounting standards (UK GAAP)

Notes “Share capital”, “Share based payments”, “Contingencies” and “Related party transactions” of the CEVA Group
Plc consolidated accounts also form part of these financial statements

As permutted by section 408 of the Compamies Act 2006, the Company’s profit and loss account has not been
presented The CEVA Group Plc consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 contain

a consohdated statement of cash flows Consequently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption of FRS 1,
(Rewvised 1996) ‘Cash Flow Statements’ not to present its own cash flow statement

The CEVA Group Plc consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 contain related party
disclosures Consequently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption n FRS 8, ‘Related Party Disclosures’ not
to disclose transactions with other members of the CEVA Group which are eliminated on consolidation The ultimate
controlling party of CEVA Group Pl is Apollo Details of related party transactions with Apollo are given in note 28
“Retated party transactions” of the consolidated financiat statements

The CEVA Group Plc consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 20132 contain financial
instrurnent disclosures which comply with FRS 29, ‘Financial instruments Disclosure and Presentation’ Consequently,
the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 29 not to present separate financial instrument disclosures

for the Company

12 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Euro using the exchange rates prevaifing at the dates of

the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and habilities denominated n foreign currencies are

recognized in profit and loss

13 Investments in substdiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment Investments in subsidiary
undertakings and amounts recewvable from subsidiaries are reviewed for imparrment if there are indicators that

the carrying value may not be recoverable

1.4 Taxation ‘
Full prowision 1s made for deferred income taxation on all iming differences which have arisen but not reversed at

the Balance Sheet date Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that 1t 15 regarded as mare likely than
not that there will be suffictent taxable profits frem which the underlying timing differences can be deducted
The deferred income tax balances are not discounted

15 Borrowings
Borrowings are recogruzed intially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated

at amortized cost, any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value s
recognized 1n profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

1 6 Share caprtal

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of ordinary shares and share
options are recognized as a deductton from equity net of any tax effects
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2. OTHER INFORMATION

Drrectors, employees and independent auditor remuneration

The directors and certam other executive management of CEVA Group Plc were the only employees of the Company

during the 2013 finantial year Direciors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 7 “Personnel expenses” of the consolidated
financial statements Independent audrtor remuneration is disclosed in note 8 of the consohdated financial statements

3. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
€ millions

2013 2017
Balance at 1January e 306 ° 16
Addvons e 506
Disposals “_______ e 5
Impalrment - -
Balance at 31 December 817 206

The hist of the principal subsidiaries 1s included in note 30 of the consolidated financial statements CEVA Limited,

Paintblend Limuted, Paintblend 2 Limited, CEVA Logistics Cayman and CEVA Logistics Second Cayman are directly held

wholly owned subsidharies of CEVA Group Plc

CEVA Group Plc acquired ownership of certain group entities, following the May 2013 Recapitalization described in

note 21 of the consolidated financial statements

4 BORROWINGS

€ millions 2013 201z
toannotes T T 1,317 1,706
Bank borrowings - g4
Borrowings 1,317 3,790

Loan notes comprise

Us5562 million 8 375% first lien senior secured notes due 2017 (2012 USS5775 million)
US$210 mithon 11 625% senior secured priortty hen notes due 2016 {2012 US$210 mullion)
US$12 nullion 11 5% jumiar priority sermor secured notes due 2018 (2012 US$702 million)

€5 million 12% seniar unsecured nates due 2014 (2012 €11 millian)
USS43 million 12%% Senior Notes due 2020 (2012 US$620 million )

A 10% PIi note, due May 2023, to CEVA Holdings LLC, 1s inciuded in the total amount listed for loan notes This
comprises a principal amount of US§724 miltion (€557 rmullion) and accrued interest of US$12 million (€9
mithion} The fair value {excluding acerued interest) of the PIK note was US5666 (€512 million) Interest is added

to the principal until maturity

A 4% debenture with a principle of US$390 mullion and a fair value of US$345 milion at year end 31 December

2013 (2012 nil)

Bank borrowings in 2012 comprise

L]

Further detatls are disclosed in note 21 “Borrowings” of the consolidated financial statements

9 75% senior unsecured loan due 2018 of US5113 mulion
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5. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Total equity

Caltedup share share premium Other Profitandioss  shareholders'

€ millions capital? account reserves reserve funds
“Belance at 1 Jenuany 2012 i 382 - {23} 370
Netinvestment hedges . - - 2} - 1)
Lepnaleontributon . . : - 523 : 523
Result aftributable to equily holders for the year - - - (79) {75)
Balance at 31 December 2012 / 1 Sanuary 2013 1 382 522 (92) 813
Currency translation adjustment - - {19) - {19}
Netinvestment hedges - - 3 - 3
Capital contribution ! - - 751 - 751
Result attributable to equity holders for the year - - - 47 47
Balance at 31 December 2013 1 382 1,256 {45) 1,534

! See note 21 "Borrowings" for details on the capital contribution
?see note 20 "share Capital” of the consolidated financial statements

Further information on the share capital of the Company is shown in note 20 “Share capital” of the consclidated

financral statements

6. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

Refer to note 29 of the consalidated financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
CEVA GROUP PLC

REPORT ON THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OUR OPINION
In our opinion the financial statements, defined below

s gve atrue and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013,
« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accaunting Practice, and
s have been prepared in accordance with the requrements of the Companies Act 2006

This opinion 15 to be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED
The parent company financial statements (the “financial statements”), which are prepared by CEVA Group Plc,
comprise

¢ the Company halance sheet as at 31 December 2013, and

« the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thetr preparation 15 applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (Uruted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for
example In respect of significant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and
considered future events

WHAT AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INVOLVES

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) {“ISAs (UK &
Ireland)”} An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

+ whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the parent company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

s thereasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
» the overall presentation of the financial statements

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify matenal
incensistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any infformation that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by usin the course of parforming the audtt
If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
report

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the finanaial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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OTHER MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TC REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been recewved from branches not visited by us, or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opruon, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report anising from this responsibility

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

QUR RESPONSIBILITIES AND THOSE OF THE DIRECTORS
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page [17], the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 15 to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
1SAs {UK & Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the epinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a bedy in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no ether purpose We do not, in giving these
opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 15 shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

OTHER MATTER
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of CEVA Group ple for the year ended 31 December
2013

Ol Lt

Graham McGregor {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

30 April 2014

(a) The maintenance and integrity of the CEVA Group plc website 15 the responsibility of the divectors, the work carried out by
the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordmngly, the zuditors accept no responsibifity for any
changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were intially presented on the website

{b} Legislation in the United Kingdom govermng the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions
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CONMIPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR 2012

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE
Rather than include in this annual report some of the information included in our previous annual reports, we are

incorporating this information by reference, which means that we are disclosing important information to you by
referring you to another document posted on our website and filed with the Insh Stock Exchange (‘ISE’) The CEVA
Group Plc Annual Report for the year 2012, posted on our website and filed by us with the ISE, contains important
informatron about us and we incorporate It by reference

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or considered to be incorporated by reference in this annual
report shall be considered to be modified or superseded for purposes of this annual report to the extent that

a statement contamed in this annual report or tn any subsequently posted or filed document that is or 1s considered to
be incorporated by reference modifies or supersedes such statement Any statement thatis modified or superseded
shall not, except as so modified or superseded, constitute a part of this annual report

You can obtan the document incorporated by reference in this annual report from

o Our webstte (http //www cevalogistics com/en-US/aboutus/Investors)
o The website of the Irish Stock Exchange (http //www Ise i)
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DESCRIPTION OF KEY LINE ITEMS
IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Below 15 a brief deseription of the composition of the key line items of our Consolidated Income Statement

REVENUE
Revenue represents the delivery of goods and services to third parties less discounts, credit notes and taxes levied on

sales

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses have been ciassified by nature as follows

o Work contracted out includes amounts charged by third parties directly attributable to the normal operating
activities of the business The majority of these costs relate to purchased transportation

e Personnel expenses are charged to the profit and loss account when due and in accordance with employment
contracts and obligations This includes all wage and social costs of both direct and indirect employees It also
includes agency costs of non-permanent {(subcontracted) warehouse personnel

o Qther operating expenses include cost of matenals (including fuel, packaging, pallets and utility costs) and costs
ncurred for insurance, consultancy, audit, legal and miscellaneous costs Additionally, this ncludes expenditure
associated with the rental of trucks and material handhing equipment, as well as warehouse rental costs Other
operating income representing insurance recelpts and other sundry income may be netted against ather operating
expenses If they are not matereal

DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT

Depreciation and amortization is charged to profit or loss an a straight-line basis over the expected Iife of the related
asset Amortization and impairment on contractual customer relationships and brands recognized upon the acquisition
of the Contract Logistics business from TNT N V end the Freight Management business from EGL In¢ 1s recognized in
amortization and tmpairment on purchased intangibles Impairment 1s recognized in profit or loss as incurred

NET FINANCE INCOME/(EXPENSE) {INCLUDING FOREIGN EXCHANGE MOVEMENTS)

Interest income mainly relates to interest earned on loans and deposits and interest charged on overdue customer
receivables Interest and stimilar expenses relates to interest charged on loans, financial leases, other borrowings and
pension schemes

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax represents the aggregate amount included in the deterrmination of profit or loss for the period in respect of
current tax and deferred tncome tax Current tax 1s the amount of income taxes payable / (recoverable) in respect of
the taxable profit / (loss) for a period Deferred income tax represents the amounts of iIncome taxes payable /
{recoverable} in future pernods 1n respect of taxable (deductible) temporary differences and unused tax losses
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CERTAIN DEFINITIONS S

In this Annual Report

=]

Unless expressly stated otherwise or where the context otherwise requires, ‘the Company’, ‘we’, ‘us’, ‘our’, ‘Group’
and other similar terms refer to CEVA Group Plc and its subsidiaries after giving effect to the EGL Acquisition
‘Apollo’ refers to Apollo Global Management, LLC and its affiliates, which include Apolio Management VI, L P, AP VI
CEVA Holdings, L P, AlpInvest Partners Beheer 2006, L. P and AAA Guarantor — Co-Invest VI (B), L P

‘CapRe’ refers to Capital Research and Management Company

‘Frankhin’ refets ta Franklin Adwvisers, Inc and Franklin Templeton Investments Corp

o ‘Net capital expendsiture’ 1s defined as amounts used during a particular period to acquire or improve long term

assets such as property, plant or equipment or intangtble assets, net of sale and leaseback and other financing
transactions and excluding items of a capital nature acquired as a part of an acquisitron

‘EBITDA’ or ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization’ is not a measurement of performance or
hquidity under IFRS and should not be considered as a substitute for profit / (loss) for the year, operating profit, net
income or any other performance measures derived i accordance with IFRS or as a substitute for cash flow from
operating activitres as a measure of CEVA's performance Because not all companies calculate EBITDA identically,
the presentations of EBITDA in this annual report may not be comparahble to other similarly titled measures of other
companies

‘EGL Acquisition” refers to CEVA's acquisition of the Houston based freight forwarder which was completed on 2
August 2007 purstiant to the terms of the EGL Merger Agreement

‘Headroom’ is the sum of cash and cash equivalents plus committed facil:ties less amounts drawn on committed
facilities

‘IFRS’ refers to International Finaneial Reporiing Standards as adopted by the European Union

‘Logistics business’ refers to the subsidiaries, businasses, assets and liabilities of TNT that were acquired on 4 November
2006 by CEVA

‘Net debt’ is calculated as total principal debt less cash and cash equivalents

‘Specific items” are significant nen-recurring items The principal events which may give nise to a specific item
include estructuring, cost reduction programs and materal tigation costs, amongst others

‘TER' refers to ‘Trattamento di Fine Rapporte’ leaving service benefits provided to ltalian employees that are
mandatory under Italian law

TNT refersto TNTN V
‘Net working capital’ 1s defined as non-interest bearing current assets minus non-interest charging current habilities

" or ‘dollar’ or ‘United States dolfar' or 'US dollar’ or “US$’ refers to the lawful currency of the United States of
America

‘€' or ‘Euro’ refers to the single currency of the participating Member States 1n the Third Stage of European
Economic and Monetary Union of the Treaty Estabhshing the Eurapean Community

‘£, ‘British pound’ or ‘pounds sterling’ refers ta the lawful curiency of the United Kingdom
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